
 
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE 

SUPPORT) will be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
TUESDAY, 9 DECEMBER 2008 at 7:30 PM and you are requested to 
attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE WILL BE A BRIEFING FOR ALL 
PANEL MEMBERS AT 7PM. 

 
 

 

Contact 
(01480) 

 

 APOLOGIES   
 

 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 
11th November 2008. 
 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any Agenda Item.  Please see Notes 1 and 2 below. 
 
 

 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 7 - 
12) 

 

 

 In accordance with the agreed procedure, Members are invited to 
note the Plan and to comment as appropriate on any items contained 
therein. A copy of the current Forward Plan is attached. 
 
 

 

4. DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIONS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT DPD  (Pages 13 - 14) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services. 
 
(A copy of the report – Development Management DPD: 
Development of Options 2009 is enclosed with Members’ copies 
only). 
 

C Bond 
388435 

5. URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK - LAND AROUND BUTTSGROVE 
WAY, THE WHADDONS AND SUFFOLK HOUSE, HUNTINGDON  
(Pages 15 - 16) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services. 
 
(A copy of the Urban Design Framework is enclosed with Members’ 
copies only). 

M Huntington 
388404 



 
6. MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING 

OBLIGATIONS)  (Pages 17 - 32) 
 

 

 To consider the quarterly monitoring report outlining the progress in 
the expenditure of benefits received from Section 106 Agreements. 
 
 

R Fuller 
388463 

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  (Pages 33 - 44) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Director of Central Services outlining 
performance information on “Growing Success” – the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. 
 
 

H Thackray 
388035 

8. WORKPLAN STUDIES  (Pages 45 - 50) 
 

 

 To consider, with the aid of a report by the Head of Administration, 
the programme of studies. 
 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

9. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE SUPPORT)  
(Pages 51 - 58) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Administration on decisions 
taken by the Panel. 
 
 

Mrs C Bulman 
388234 

10. SCRUTINY  (Pages 59 - 70) 
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions since the last meeting. A copy of the relevant 
Decision Digest is attached. 
 
 

 

   
 Dated this 28 day of November 2008  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

  
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 



 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 

Please contact Mrs C Bulman, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No 01480 388234/e-
mail:  Claire.Bulman@huntsdc.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, 
wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information 
on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit and to make their way to the car park adjacent to the Methodist Church on the High 
Street (opposite Prima's Italian Restaurant). 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SERVICE SUPPORT) held in the Council Chamber, Pathfinder 
House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Tuesday, 11 
November 2008. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor J A Gray – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors M G Baker, K M Baker, J T Bell, 

J W Davies, P J Downes, P M D Godfrey, 
D Harty, Ms S Kemp, L W McGuire, 
M F Newman, R G Tuplin and R J West. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors 
P H Dakers and A N Gilbert. 

   
 IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors P L E Bucknell 

 
Councillors Mrs M Banerjee, E R Butler, S J 
Criswell, P G Mitchell and J S Watt (Overview 
& Scrutiny Panel, Service Delivery for Minute 
48 only) 

 
 

45. SUPPORTING LOCAL RETAILERS   
 

 The Chairman reported that in accordance with Article 16 of the 
Access to Information Rules contained in the Council’s Constitution, 
he had given consent for an item relating to a proposal to introduce a 
car parking voucher scheme in long-stay car parks on Saturdays to 
be submitted as an item of urgency to the meeting of the Cabinet held 
on 6th November 2008.  Members were reminded that Article 16 
required the Chairman to report upon his actions to the next ensuing 
meeting of the Panel. 
 
 

46. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 14th October 2008 
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

47. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 No declarations were received. 
 
 

48. GREAT FEN PROJECT   
 

 (Councillor P L E Bucknell, Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy 
and Transportation, was in attendance for this item.) 
 
(Councillors Mrs M Banerjee, E R Butler, S J Criswell, P G Mitchell 

Agenda Item 1

1



and J S Watt, Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service 
Delivery) were also in attendance for this item). 
 
The Panel received a presentation by Mr C Gerrard, Project Manager 
of the Great Fen Project (copies of the slides are appended in the 
Minute Book) outlining the scope of the project, its background, 
management arrangements and recent developments.  A copy of a 
report to be submitted to the Cabinet meeting on 20th November 
2008 outlining a proposal for future governance arrangements was 
also circulated for comment.   
 
 In considering the content of the presentation and the Cabinet report, 
Members expressed some reservations about the way in which the 
project was progressing. Specifically comments were made in relation 
to the perceived acceleration of the development of the project which, 
while welcome in itself, might have adverse short term implications for 
some of the local people most directly affected. Comments were also 
made about the loss of arable land in the current climate of global 
food shortages and the need for improved communication with local 
communities in close proximity to the project. 
 
The Panel also discussed the proposed future creation of a Visitors 
Centre for the project and in doing so commented on the need to 
improve accessibility to Woodwalton and Holme Fen, especially car 
parking at an early opportunity. However it was accepted by Members 
that accessibility, together with the proposed location of the Visitors’ 
Centre were likely to form part of the Great Fen Masterplan which 
was expected to be published in Spring 2009.  Following questions 
about the financial viability of the Centre, the longer term 
management of the project and the source of any subsidy potentially 
required, Members were informed that financial contributions would 
be obtained from a number of sources.  Members also were informed 
by the Project Manager that the success of the project should not be 
perceived purely in economic terms and that the environmental and 
social benefits to the District also needed to be taken into 
consideration.  
 
 In response to a specific question concerning proposals to convert 
land used for arable crops into grazing which would generate 
methane production, the Project Manager explained that it was 

anticipated that the Great Fen Project would reduce CO
2 
gas 

emissions and would become a  future net sequester for green house 
gases.  
 
Members also emphasised the important role that the District Council 
played in the Great Fen Partnership as the only democratically 
elected body of the various partners who could represent local people 
and the local economy. A need was highlighted to improve 
communication with all Members concerning the project as a whole 
given its significance and importance.  
 
Having concluded that the District Council could best influence and 
guide the project in the interests of the local area and its residents by 
continuing involvement in the Project Steering Group, the Panel 
 
RESOLVED 
 

2



 (a) that the proposed principle of entering into a 
Collaborative Agreement in respect of the Great Fen 
Project for a five-year fixed term on a renewable basis 
be supported; and 

 
 (b) that the detailed content of the agreement be the 

subject of a future report to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel (Service Support). 

 
 

49. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN   
 

 The Panel considered and noted the current Forward Plan of key 
decisions (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
scheduled for consideration by the Cabinet, which had been prepared 
by the Leader of the Council.   
 
 

50. GYPSY & TRAVELLER SITES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
DOCUMENT: INITIAL ISSUES CONSULTATION DOCUMENT: 
PRINCIPLES & PROCESSES   

 
 (Councillor P L E Bucknell, Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy 

and Transportation  was in attendance for this Item). 
 
With the assistance of a joint report by the Heads of Planning and 
Housing Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Panel considered the content of a proposed consultation 
document which had been designed to invite public views on the 
issues which would help guide the preparation of the Development 
Plan Document (DPD) for Gypsy and Traveller sites within the 
District.  
 
Having been acquainted with the background to the creation of the 
DPD, together with the requirements for side identification in 
Huntingdonshire in the Regional Spatial Strategy, Members were 
informed that the consultation document was the first public step in 
the preparation of the DPD.   
 

In discussing the process, the Panel recognised the potentially 
contentious nature of the issue, especially once the process moved 
on to site identification. Members therefore acknowledged the need 
for a robust basis for the site selection exercise and the importance of 
generating interest and comment at this stage of the process. Specific 
questions were raised concerning the availability of consultation 
responses, the method of engaging with the gypsy and traveller 
community, the options available for the acquisition and allocation of 
appropriate land and the role which District Council Members could 
play in the process. Concerns also were raised about the implications 
for Huntingdonshire residents of potential sites selected by 
neighbouring authorities near to the District’s boundary. 
 
Having regard to the possibility of sites being chosen in the more rural 
areas in the District, the Panel suggested that the proposed 6 weeks 
consultation period might be too short for some of the smaller 
parishes to respond. As the scope to extend the deadline for 

3



comment was constrained by the need for early approval of the DPD, 
the Panel asked officers to alert town and parish councils and 
Members of the District Council to the forthcoming publication of the 
document and its significance. Officers also were requested to 
consider the possibility of convening a limited number of workshops 
for interested town and parish councils. Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the Cabinet be recommended to endorse the 
               recommendations within the report as submitted. 
 
 

51. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD PANELS   
 

 By way of a joint report by the Heads of Administration, 
Environmental and Community Health Services and Policy & 
Strategic Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
the Panel was updated with the latest developments on 
neighbourhood engagement arising from the Government’s White 
Paper – Communities in Control:  Real Power, Real People.   
 
The Head of Administration reported that in view of the significant 
number of such policy initiatives and the need to ensure a co-
ordinated approach in considering the implications for both the District 
Council and the communities of Huntingdonshire, it had been 
proposed that the Democratic Structure Working Party should be 
invited to undertake a detailed consideration of the issues as part of 
its review of the Council’s democratic arrangements.   
 
Attention also was drawn by a Member to the need to address the 
implications of the Sustainable Communities Act 2007 and it was 
explained that this would be incorporated into the discussions of the 
working party.  Members also expressed concern regarding the 
operation of the current Safer Neighbourhood Panels and urged the 
working party to consider these and other related issues in a timely 
manner.   
 
Having been advised of the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel (Service Delivery) which also had considered the report, 
Members 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the suggested process for the consideration and 

development of community engagement initiatives by the 
Democratic Structure Working Party be endorsed.   

  
 

52. HOME WORKING - PILOT SCHEME   
 

 With the assistance of a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic 
Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Panel 
was acquainted with the outcome of a pilot scheme under which five 
employees had worked full-time from home over the preceding year.   
 
Having noted the positive benefits demonstrated by the pilot, the 

4



potential savings in office accommodation costs and  the intention to 
roll-out full-time home working to other employees where appropriate, 
the Panel  
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the contents of the report be welcomed and efforts to 

expand the pilot be encouraged.   
 
 

53. WORKPLAN STUDIES   
 

 The Panel considered and noted a report by the Head of 
Administration (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
reviewing the Panel’s programme of studies.  In doing so, Councillor 
Ms S L Kemp reported on the investigations being undertaken by the 
working group reviewing the social consequences of alcohol abuse. It 
was reported that the Section 106 Working Group had not met since 
the previous meeting of the Panel. 
 
Attention was drawn to a briefing note which had been circulated to 
Members of the Panel with regard to Treasury Management. 
Members concluded from the information provided that this would not 
be an appropriate study area, but suggested that the Council’s future 
borrowing requirements might be a potential area of investigation in 
the new Municipal Year. 
 
 

54. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE SUPPORT)   
 

 The Panel considered and noted a report by the Head of 
Administration (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) 
reviewing the Panel’s progress to date on issues that had been 
discussed previously.   
 
In referring to the recent study of HGV parking, the Panel were 
advised that a meeting of the Freight Quality Partnership had recently 
been held and details of their discussions would be circulated once 
the Minutes were available.   
 
The Chairman reported that he had received a response from 
Councillor P L E Bucknell in reply to his letter concerning problems 
with commuter parking in the Longsands Aaea of St. Neots.  It was 
reported that further information would be available in the New Year 
when investigations had been undertaken by the County Council. 
 
 

55. SCRUTINY   
 

 The Panel considered and noted the latest edition of the Council’s 
Decision Digest, summarising the Council’s decisions since the 
previous meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 

5



 
Chairman 

 
 

6



 

 
 

F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
lo

r 
I 

C
 B

a
te

s
M

is
s
 E

ff
e
 C

h
ri

s
o

s
to

m
o

u
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
a
ti

o
n

: 
1
4
 N

o
v

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
8
 

F
o

r 
P

e
ri

o
d

: 
1
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2
0

0
8
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
 

 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
is

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

 
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

I 
C

 B
a

te
s
 

 
- 

L
e

a
d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

4
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
n

d
 

H
ilt

o
n

 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

  
 P

E
2

8
 9

N
J
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 8
3
0

2
5
0

  
  

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

Ia
n

.B
a

te
s
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

L
 M

 S
im

p
s
o

n
 

 
- 

D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
  

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

  
a

n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

4
5

 D
e

v
o

k
e
 C

lo
s
e

 
S

tu
k
e
le

y
 M

e
a

d
o

w
s
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 
C

a
m

b
s
  

  
 P

E
2
9

 6
X

E
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
4
6

  
  

  
  

E
-m

a
il:

  
M

ik
e

.S
im

p
s
o

n
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n

e
ll 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

  
a

n
d

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

p
a
s
s
 H

o
u

s
e

 
P

a
th

fi
n
d

e
r 

W
a

y
 

W
a
rb

o
y
s
 

P
E

2
8

 2
R

D
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
7

 8
2
4

2
2
2

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

P
e

te
r.

B
u
c
k
n
e

ll@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

K
 J

 C
h

u
rc

h
ill

 
- 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

5
1

 G
o

rd
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 
L

it
tl
e

 P
a

x
to

n
 

S
t 

N
e

o
ts

 
P

E
1

9
 6

N
J
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
5
2

0
4
0
 

E
-m

a
il:

  
K

e
n
.C

h
u

rc
h

ill
@

h
u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

D
 B

 D
e

w
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

L
e

is
u

re
 

4
 W

e
ir

 R
o

a
d

 
H

e
m

in
g

fo
rd

 G
re

y
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

  
P

E
2

8
 9

E
H

 
 T

e
l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 4
6
9

8
1
4

  
  

  
  

E
-m

a
il:

  
D

o
u
g

la
s
.D

e
w

@
h

u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

C
 R

 H
y
a

m
s
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

O
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
  

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
2

 B
lu

e
g

a
te

 
G

o
d

m
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r 
H

u
n

ti
n

g
d

o
n

 
C

a
m

b
s
 P

E
2

9
 2

E
Z

 
 T

e
l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
6
8

  
  

  
  
 

E
-m

a
il:

  
C

o
lin

.H
y
a

m
s
@

h
u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

Agenda Item 3

7



C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

A
 H

a
n
s
a

rd
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

  
a

n
d

 P
o

lic
y
 

7
8

 P
o

tt
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 
E

y
n

e
s
b

u
ry

 
S

t 
N

e
o

ts
 

P
E

1
9

 2
N

N
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
4
2

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

A
n
d

re
w

.H
a

n
s
a

rd
@

h
u
n

ts
d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
rs

 D
 C

 R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
 

- 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
  

  
a

n
d

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h
  

1
7

 V
ir

g
in

ia
 W

a
y
 

S
t 

Iv
e

s
 

P
E

2
7

 6
S

Q
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
0

 3
8
8

9
3
5

  
 

E
-m

a
il:

  
D

e
b
o

ra
h

.R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

T
 V

 R
o

g
e

rs
 

  
- 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

F
in

a
n

c
e

  
  

a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t 
H

o
n

e
y
s
u

c
k
le

 C
o

tt
a
g

e
 

3
4

 M
e

a
d

o
w

 L
a

n
e

 
E

a
ri

th
 

H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

  
  

 P
E

2
8

 3
Q

E
 

 T
e

l:
  

0
1

4
8
7

 8
4
0

4
7
7

  
  

  
  

  
E

-m
a

il:
  

T
e

re
n
c
e

.R
o

g
e

rs
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 A
n

y
 p

e
rs

o
n

 w
h

o
 w

is
h

e
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
a
b

o
u

t 
a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 m
a

y
 d

o
 s

o
 b

y
 c

o
n

ta
c
ti
n

g
 M

rs
 H

e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r,
 S

e
n

io
r 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
n
 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8
0

0
8

 o
r 

E
-m

a
il:

  
 H

e
le

n
.T

a
y
lo

r@
h

u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

n
o
t 

le
s
s
 t
h

a
n

 1
4

 d
a

y
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

 T
h

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

o
ff
ic

e
r 

s
h

o
w

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 p
la

n
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
o

n
 t

h
e
 

m
a

tt
e

r 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

 S
im

ila
rl

y
 a

n
y
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
u
b

je
c
t 

o
r 

m
a

tt
e

r 
to

 b
e

 t
a

b
le

d
 f

o
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
d
o

c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
ir
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

o
ff
ic

e
r.

 
 R

o
y
 R

e
e

v
e

s
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

te
s
:-

 
(i

) 
A

d
d

it
io

n
s
/s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 a
re

 a
n

n
o

ta
te

d
 *

**
 

 
(i

i)
 

F
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 p

le
a
s
e

 s
e

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
s
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 a

t 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
/N

R
/r

d
o

n
ly

re
s
/3

F
6

C
F

E
2

8
-

C
5

F
0

-4
B

A
0

-9
B

F
2

-7
6

E
B

A
E

0
6
C

8
9

D
/0

/P
e

ti
ti
o
n

s
le

a
fl
e

t.
p
d

f 
o

r 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e

 0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

0
0

6
 

 

 

S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
R

e
p

o
rt

**
* 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 G
ro

w
in

g
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 G
ro

w
in

g
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

 Ia
n

 L
e
a

th
e

rb
a

rr
o

w
, 

H
e

a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 
S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4
8

0
 3

8
8

0
0
5

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

Ia
n

.L
e
a

th
e
rb

a
rr

o
w

@
h

u
n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 N
/A

  
 A

 H
a

n
s
a

rd
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
 

8



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
in

 S
t.

 
Iv

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

t.
 N

e
o
ts

 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 N
o

n
e

. 
 

 J
u

lia
 B

a
rb

e
r,

 H
e
a

d
 o

f 
R

e
v
e

n
u
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
l 

N
o

. 
0

1
4
8

0
 3

8
8

1
0

5
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

J
u

lia
.B

a
rb

e
r@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 L

 M
 S

im
p

s
o

n
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

 T
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
U

rb
a

n
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 
S

o
u

th
 o

f 
H

ig
h

 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 R
a
m

s
e

y
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 D
ra

ft
 C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

-m
a
il 

- 
R

ic
h

a
rd

.P
ro

b
y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

fo
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
ie

s
  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

s
 

 

 K
e

it
h

 P
h
ill

ip
s
, 

E
s
ta

te
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
T

e
l 
N

o
. 

 0
1
4

8
0

 3
8

8
2
6

0
 o

r 
e

m
a
il 

K
e

it
h

.P
h
ill

ip
s
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 A

 H
a

n
s
a

rd
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 T
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
S

o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

 
C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 D
ra

ft
 C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

fo
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
ie

s
  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o
n

tr
o

l 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 Is
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 O
p
ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 S
u
m

m
a

ry
 

o
f 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

r 
C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 T
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
U

rb
a

n
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 
la

n
d

 a
t 
T

h
e

 
W

h
a
d

d
o

n
s
, 

M
a

y
fi
e

ld
 

D
ri

v
e

, 
H

u
n

ti
n
g

d
o
n

 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 D
ra

ft
 C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

 0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

-m
a

il 
- 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

fo
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
ie

s
  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

9



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

G
ra

n
t 

L
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 T
h

e
 D

is
a

b
le

d
 

F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 G

ra
n

ts
 

(M
a

x
im

u
m

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
) 

(E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
O

rd
e

r 
2

0
0
8

 
(S

1
2

0
0

8
/1

1
8
9

).
 T

h
e

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
n
e

w
a

l 
G

ra
n

ts
 (

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t)
 

(E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

8
 

(S
1

2
0

0
8
/1

1
9
0

).
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
6

-1
1

. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

G
ra

n
ts

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 A
c
t 

1
9

9
6

 
 

 J
o

 E
m

m
e

rt
o

n
, 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

2
0

3
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

J
o

.E
m

m
e

rt
o

n
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 M

rs
 D

 C
 

R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

 IC
T

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 IC
T

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

 A
n

d
re

w
 H

o
w

e
s
, 

IM
D

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

1
9

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

A
n

d
re

w
.H

o
w

e
s
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 L

 M
 S

im
p

s
o

n
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

 W
e
b
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
8

 D
e

c
 2

0
0
8

 
 

 W
e
b
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 

 J
o

h
n
 T

a
y
lo

r,
 I

M
D

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
T

e
l 

N
o

. 
 0

1
4
8

0
 3

8
8

1
1

9
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

J
o

h
n
.T

a
y
lo

r@
h

u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 L

 M
 S

im
p

s
o

n
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

 N
e

w
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

- 
B

u
ild

in
g

 A
 -

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
**

* 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 B
u

ild
in

g
 A

 -
 O

p
ti
o
n

s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

re
s
to

n
, 
N

e
w

 A
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o
n

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

r 
T

e
l 
N

o
 0

1
4

8
0

 3
8

8
3
4

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
R

ic
h

a
rd

.P
re

s
to

n
@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 T
o

 b
e

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y
 

o
p

ti
o
n

 s
e

le
c
ti
o
n

. 
 

 M
 S

im
p

s
o

n
 

 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 
a

n
d

 M
T

P
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 D
ra

ft
 M

T
P

 -
 P

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
r'
s
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

re
p

o
rt

 -
 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 A

n
n
e

x
e

s
 

 

 S
te

v
e

 C
o

u
p

e
r,

 H
e

a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

1
0

3
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
S

te
v
e

.C
o

u
p

e
r@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 (

C
S

F
) 

–
 

2
7

th
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
9

  

 T
 V

 R
o

g
e

rs
 

 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
  

(C
S

F
) 

 

10



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
P

ru
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r'
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

 S
te

v
e

 C
o

u
p

e
r,

 H
e

a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

1
0

3
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
S

te
v
e

.C
o

u
p

e
r@

h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 T

 V
 R

o
g

e
rs

 
 

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 (

C
S

F
) 

 

 P
a

ri
s
h
 P

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 
L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n

 P
o

lic
y
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 2
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
0

9
 

 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 D
e

c
 2

0
0

3
 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il.
 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
d

o
p

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

P
a

ri
s
h

 P
la

n
 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 i
n

to
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
o
lic

ie
s
  

 

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 P

a
rk

 
   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
9

 F
e
b

 2
0
0

9
 

 

 D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
R

iv
e

rs
id

e
 P

a
rk

 
 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
k
e

y
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
&

 O
th

e
rs

 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 T
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
H

o
u
g

h
to

n
 

a
n

d
 W

y
to

n
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 

a
n

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
9

 F
e
b

 2
0
0

9
 

 

 D
ra

ft
 C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

fo
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
ie

s
  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

 H
u

n
ti
n

g
d

o
n

 W
e
s
t 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o
n

s
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
9

 F
e
b

 2
0
0

9
 

 

 Is
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 O
p
ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 S
u
m

m
a

ry
 

o
f 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 

 R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ro
b

y
n

, 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

4
3

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

R
ic

h
a

rd
.P

ro
b

y
n

@
h
u

n
ts

d
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

 f
o

r 
C

o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
  

 P
 L

 E
 B

u
c
k
n
e

ll 
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

11



S
u

b
je

c
t/

M
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
D

e
c

is
io

n
 

D
e

c
is

io
n

/ 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

D
a

te
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 
b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 
H

o
w

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
c

a
n

 b
e
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

  
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
lo

r 

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e

rs
o

n
s
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

U
p

d
a

te
 

   

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

 

 1
2

 M
a

r 
2

0
0

9
 

 

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
6

-1
1

. 
A

g
e

in
g

 
W

e
ll,

 H
o

u
s
in

g
, 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
. 

L
if
e

ti
m

e
 

H
o

m
e

s
, 

L
if
e

ti
m

e
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
, 

A
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 a
n

 A
g

e
in

g
 

S
o

c
ie

ty
, 

C
L

G
, 

D
W

P
, 

a
n

d
 D

H
, 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

 

 J
o

 E
m

m
e

rt
o

n
, 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

T
e

l 
N

o
. 

0
1

4
8

0
 3

8
8

2
0

3
 o

r 
e

m
a

il 
- 

J
o

.E
m

m
e

rt
o

n
@

h
u
n

ts
d

c
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

   
 M

rs
 D

 C
 

R
e

y
n

o
ld

s
 

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

 12



       
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL              9 DECEMBER 2008  
(SERVICE SUPPORT)  

 
DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIONS FOR THE  
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT DPD 

(Report by HEAD OF PLANNNG SERVICES) 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council consulted on Issues and Options for the Development 

Control Policies DPD during May, June and July 2007 in conjunction with 
those for the Core Strategy to give stakeholders an initial picture of how 
the two documents would interrelate. Since then the Core Strategy has 
been given precedence leading to its submission in July 2008. With this in 
place the framework is now available in which to generate reasonable 
options for the Development Management DPD. The representations 
made on the Issues and Options Document have been taken into account 
in preparation of the attached document.  

 
2  IMPACT OF NEW REGULATIONS 
 

2.1 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 came into force in June altering the 
procedures for public participation in the preparation of DPDs.  The 
former Regulation 25 and 26 stages, commonly referred to as Issues and 
Options and Preferred Options, have been amalgamated into a single 
phase of ongoing public engagement in the development of any DPD. 
This amended Regulation 25 stage may encompass a variety of activities 
resulting in iterative changes to the proposed content of the DPD with no 
set time periods for consultation. This is expected to be the main phase of 
consultation and engagement where stakeholders are involved in the 
evolution of the DPD. 

 
2.2 Submission arrangements have also been changed. Once the local 

authority is satisfied that there has been adequate public engagement in 
preparation of the DPD a Proposed Submission Document may be 
published with a formal consultation period of at least six weeks. 
Representations are invited on this which are intended to focus on issues 
of soundness, with the presumption that issues of content have been 
resolved through public participation under the amended Regulation 25 
stage. Once the representations have been reviewed and summarised all 
documentation should be formally submitted to the Secretary of State for 
examination. 

 
 

Agenda Item 4

13



 
3 CONTENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIONS REPORT   
 
3.1 The draft document sets out the Council’s detailed policies for managing 

development in Huntingdonshire, complementing the strategic framework 
established in the Core Strategy. In many instances it also sets out 
reasonable alternatives on how the draft policies might be taken forwards.  

 
3.2 At present the draft document contains policies promoting sustainable 

development, housing, prosperous communities and protecting and 
enhancing the environment. Through this document stakeholders will be 
invited to engage further with the Council on the range of policies 
proposed and their specific content. 

 
3.3 Many of the draft policies have evolved from those in the Huntingdonshire 

Interim Planning Policy Statement (2007). The draft policies reflect the 
representations received during the Issues and Options consultation and 
the Initial Sustainability Appraisal. They have also been updated to reflect 
changes in national guidance.  

 
4 NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1 The Development Management DPD: Development of Options document 

and its accompanying sustainability report will be presented to Cabinet on 
18 December. Further public engagement will take place from January 
2009 with a wide range of stakeholders. The proposed submission DPD 
will not be published until after the Inspector’s report into the Core 
Strategy has been received. 

 
5 RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of this report and 

forward any comments on the accompanying document to Cabinet. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Submission Core Strategy 2008  
Development Control Policies DPD Issues and Options Report 2007 
Strategic Housing Land Availability Study 
Employment Land Review 
Huntingdonshire Retail Study Update 2007 
Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
Green Infrastructure Strategy – Cambridgeshire Horizons 
 
Contact Officer: Clare Bond, Planning Policy Team Leader 
 (((( 01480 388435 
 

14



 

 
 

  
 

  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL                     9TH DECEMBER 2008                    
(SERVICE SUPPORT) 
 

URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK 
LAND AROUND BUTTSGROVE WAY, THE WHADDONS AND SUFFOLK 

HOUSE, HUNTINGDON 
(Report by HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This urban design framework examines the redevelopment 

opportunities in this part of Huntingdon. It presents the planning 
policy context for the redevelopment of this site.  

 
1.2 The Planning Portfolio Holder has approved the document for 

consultation purposes. Once representations have been considered 
and reported to Cabinet, it is intended to approve the document as 
planning guidance to be used as a material planning consideration 
when determining any planning application. 

 
2.            BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 Parts of the site are currently used as bungalows for elderly 

residents, part are used as flats, some areas are used as open space 
and some areas are used as garage courts. 

 
2.2 The owners of some of the bungalows, Luminus, have indicated their 

intention to redevelop these buildings for new dwellings, the mix of 
which is yet to be determined. 

 
2.3 The Council have taken the opportunity to widen the context and look 

at how the wider area can have environmental improvements. 
 
2.4 The Council has a land ownership interest, as it owns areas of open 

space covered within the boundaries of the framework document. 
 
3.0 THE URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK 
 
3.1 The purpose of this document is to ensure that a well planned and 

appropriate development can take place on site, something which 
contributes to improving the built environment of the town. 

 
3.2 The urban design framework sets design parameters for the 

successful development of the site, ensuring that future proposals 
achieve imaginative and distinctive solutions. Indicative layouts are 
shown that illustrate what could be achieved.  

 
3.3 A period of public consultation has been undertaken, and expires on 

9th December 2008. This has included consultation with neighbours, 

Agenda Item 5

15



four public exhibitions held in Trinity Free Church over the last four 
weeks, a presentation to the Town Council in October, and discussion 
with other relevant bodies such as the Highway Authority and Police 
Architectural Liaison Officer. The document was also discussed at 
Development Control Panel on 17th November 2008. 

 
3.4 Comments made by residents and others will be collated, and 

presented with suggested changes, in a report to Cabinet on 17th 
December 2008.  

 
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Production of an urban design framework is best practice and will 

help to secure the most appropriate form of development over this 
site. Any comments or changes as a result of any consultation will be 
brought back to Cabinet before it is adopted. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny panel endorses the contents of the 

Urban Design Framework, subject to comments received through the 
public consultation exercise, and recommends to Cabinet that it is 
approved as informal planning guidance. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPG October 2007 
Huntingdonshire Landscape & Townscape Assessment SPG October 2007 
Oxmoor Action Plan 2003 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Mike Huntington 
 (((( 01480 388404 
 

16



 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL  
(SERVICE SUPPORT)      9 DECEMBER 2008 
 
 

MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
(PLANNING OBLIGATIONS) 

(Report by Head of Policy and Strategic Services) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Panel with an update on the 

receipt of S106 monies and their allocation to and expenditure on 
specific schemes. The report also provides an overview of future 
benefits from developments that have commenced but where trigger 
points for collection of the monies have not been reached and future 
potential benefits from developments which have not yet commenced. 

 
1.2 As requested by the Panel, a copy of this report has been made 

available to all Members of the Council. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The report has four appendices: Appendix A: Section 106 Account 

(covering the period 12 August to 4 November 2008), Appendix B: Future 
benefits by location (development commenced) and Appendix C: Future 
potential benefits by location (development not commenced).   

 
Appendix D details S106 contributions attached to planning permissions 
that have expired.  

 
2.2 Appendix A comprises 5 tables: 
 

•••• Table 1. Schemes in place  
 
These are developments where monies have been received and there is 
a specific scheme in place.   
 
The drop in house sales means that in many cases it has not been 
possible to invoice for contributions related to occupancy.  This is a 
situation that will likely persist for the foreseeable future. 
 

 

•••• Table 2. Maintenance 
 

These are developments where monies have been received and where 
part of the account is ring-fenced for future maintenance of play 
equipment and open space.  Monies will be spent in accordance with 
approved maintenance schedules. 

 
 

•••• Table 3. Unallocated 
 

Agenda Item 6

17



These are developments where monies have been received for a general 
purpose but where a specific scheme is being developed.  The decrease 
since the last quarter is due to spend. 

 

•••• Table 4. Money spent in the last quarter 
  
 This table shows the actual spending or transfers of money in the last 

quarter in addition to those sums moved to maintenance accounts.   
 

• Table 5.  Non-monetary benefits received  
 

This has been included at the request of Members at the Panel in 
December 2007, and details non-monetary benefits recorded as received 
in the last quarter. 

 
2.3. Appendices B and C are produced as an ‘early warning’ for council 

services and others to highlight potential income and help in the earlier 
development of schemes. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel are invited to review and comment on the contents of the 

monitoring report. 
 
 
Contact Officer: Rachel Fuller, Policy Officer 
    ( (01480) 388463 

18



 
- 
1
 -
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 -
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

 T
h
is
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 h
ig

h
li
g
h
ts

 S
1
0
6
 m

o
n
ie

s 
th

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

u
n
ti
l 

th
e
y
 a

re
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

r 
tr

a
n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t
o
 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

se
rv

ic
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 (
o
r 
T
o
w

n
 o

r 
P
a
ri
sh

 C
o
u
n
c
il
) 
w

h
e
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s 

a
re

 r
e
a
d
y
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
. 
W

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s 

a
n
 e

x
p
ir
y
 d

a
te

 b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 m

u
st

 b
e
 s

p
e
n
t.

 I
t 

d
iv

id
e
s 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

in
to

 f
o
u
r 

se
c
ti
o
n
s:

  
  

T
a
b
le

 1
. 
S
c
h
e
m

e
s 
in

 p
la

c
e
: 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 m

o
n
e
y
 h

a
s 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s 
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

 T
a
b
le

 
2
. 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
: 

m
o
n
e
y
 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

u
su

a
ll
y
 
re

la
ti
n
g
 
to

 
p
la

y
 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

o
r 

o
p
e
n
 
sp

a
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 

m
o
n
e
y
 w

il
l 
b
e
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 t
h
is
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
u
n
ti
l 
it
 i
s 
d
ra

w
n
 d

o
w

n
 t
o
 p

a
y
 f
o
r 
th

e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 (
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
ll
y
 o

v
e
r 
1
5
 y

e
a
rs

).
  
 

 T
a
b
le

 3
. 
U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
: 
m

o
n
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 
y
e
t 
to

 b
e
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

 T
a
b
le

 4
. 
M

o
n
e
y
 s

p
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 l
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r:

 m
o
n
e
y
 p

re
v
io

u
sl
y
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
r 
tr

a
n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

la
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 
 T
a
b
le

 5
. 
 N

o
n
-m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

  
 

  S
u
m

m
a
ry

 
  

T
h
is
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
re

v
io

u
s 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s 
in

 p
la

c
e
 (
T
a
b
le

 1
) 

£
6
9
5
,6

4
4
 

£
5
4
4
,4

9
5
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 (
T
a
b
le

 2
) 

£
1
0
,1

1
4
 

£
1
1
,5

7
5
 

U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 (
T
a
b
le

 3
) 

£
9
5
,1

0
3
 

£
1
0
1
,8

4
3
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

£
8
0
0
,8

6
1
 

£
6
5
7
,9

1
3
 

  
 

S
p
e
n
t 
si
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

(T
a
b
le

 4
) 
 

£
2
2
9
,6

8
3
 

£
1
4
3
,2

1
4
 

 
(N

o
te

: 
T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 w
a
s 
c
re

a
te

d
 7

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
) 

 
 

19



 
- 
2
 -
 

 

 

 T
a
b
le

 1
: 
S
c
h
e
m

e
s 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

ID
 

D
a
te

 
R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

il
l 
b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
n
 

W
h
e
n
 i
t 
is
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 t
o
 

sp
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 

m
o
n
e
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

re
sp

o
n
si
b
le

 

E
x
p
ir
y
 

D
a
te

 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

2
5
 

0
3
/
1
1
/
1
9
9
7
 

2
7
,6

1
4
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

C
o
n
e
y
g
e
a
r 
P
a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t 
P
la

y
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

5
6
 

0
8
/
0
2
/
2
0
0
0
 

2
6
,0

3
2
 

S
t 
Iv

e
s 

P
ro

v
is
io

n
 a

n
d
/
o
r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

6
6
 

2
8
/
0
8
/
2
0
0
2
 

2
0
,9

2
2
 

E
y
n
e
sb

u
ry

 

C
o
n
e
y
g
e
a
r 
P
a
rk

/
H
e
n
b
ro

o
k
 P

a
rk

: 
p
ro

v
is
io

n
 a

n
d
/
o
r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

7
5
 

0
9
/
0
5
/
2
0
0
7
 

4
4
,0

6
7
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

p
ro

v
is
io

n
 a

n
d
/
o
r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 o

p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
/
o
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s 
2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

8
7
 

3
0
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
7
,8

5
4
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
S
u
st

a
in

a
b
le

 
T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

 
T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 
 

1
0
3
 

1
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
0
5
 

5
4
,1

5
5
 

E
y
n
e
sb

u
ry

 

O
n
-s

it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
to

 
b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
P
la

y
 A

re
a
 o

n
 

si
te

 (
C
o
u
n
tr

y
si
d
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

) 
2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

1
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
0
 

1
0
3
 

1
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
0
5
 

1
7
9
,9

3
6
 

E
y
n
e
sb

u
ry

 
P
la

y
in

g
 f
ie

ld
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 

L
e
is
u
re

 
1
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
0
 

1
9
9
 

2
7
/
1
1
/
2
0
0
3
 

1
4
,6

1
4
 

G
o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
st

e
r 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

S
t.

 J
u
d
it
h
’s

 F
ie

ld
 S

k
a
te

b
o
a
rd

 
R
a
m

p
 

2
0
0
7
/
2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
0
6
 

1
7
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
7
 

8
,5

7
5
 

Y
a
x
le

y
 

O
ff

 s
it
e
 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
1
5
 

2
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
0
6
 

1
2
,1

3
7
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
/
G
o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
st

e
r 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 

fo
r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is
io

n
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 o

p
e
n
 

sp
a
c
e
, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
e
is
u
re

 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 y

o
u
th

 s
h
e
lt
e
r 

(p
le

a
se

 a
ls
o
 s
e
e
 T

a
b
le

 4
) 

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 

G
o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
st

e
r 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

sp
e
n
d
in

g
 p

la
n
 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
0
8
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
2
8
 

2
1
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
8
 

3
6
,3

8
3
 

B
u
rl
e
ig

h
 R

o
a
d
, 
S
t 
Iv

e
s 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

 
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

2
0
/
0
7
/
2
0
1
3
 

2
3
7
 

0
8
/
0
8
/
2
0
0
8
 

1
5
5
,2

1
2
 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 R

o
a
d
, 
S
t 
N
e
o
ts

 
S
p
o
rt

s 
F
a
c
il
it
y
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

 
L
e
is
u
re

 
 

20



 
- 
3
 -
 

2
4
7
 

3
0
/
0
1
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
5
,5

8
1
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

P
la

y
 A

re
a
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
P
ro

p
o
sa

l 
fo

r 
sp

e
n
d
 a

t 
H
in

c
h
in

g
b
ro

o
k
e
 P

a
rk

 
a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
 

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
4
4
 

1
9
/
0
4
/
2
0
0
5
 

£
2
9
,5

0
0
 

G
o
d
m

a
n
c
h
e
st

e
r 

S
k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
9
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
4
8
 

2
7
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
7
 

6
,7

0
4
 

B
ra

m
p
to

n
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

2
0
0
8
 

tr
a
n
sf

e
r 
to

 
P
a
ri
sh

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

w
il
l 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

o
n
 s
ig

n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
se

c
o
n
d
 

in
d
e
m

n
it
y
, 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

        
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
5
7
 

3
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
7
,1

2
7
 

S
o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

 

P
la

y
 A

re
a
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

sk
a
te

 p
a
rk

 i
n
 S

o
m

e
rs

h
a
m

 

2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9
 o

n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

P
a
ri
sh

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

p
la

n
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
6
6
 

0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
0
8
 

2
9
,2

3
1
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

P
u
b
li
c
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

 
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

T
o
ta

l 
 

 

6
9
5
,6

4
4
 

 
 

 
 

 

L
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

 
5
4
4
,4

9
5
 

 
 

 
 

 

     T
a
b
le

 2
: 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

 

ID
 

D
a
te

 
R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

£
 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
n
e
y
 h

a
s 

to
 b

e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

re
sp

o
n
si
b
le

 

1
0
3
 

0
6
/
1
2
/
2
0
0
6
 

6
,1

2
7
 

E
y
n
e
sb

u
ry

 
P
la

y
 A

re
a
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

1
8
1
 

1
5
/
0
6
/
2
0
0
6
 

3
,9

8
7
 

S
t 
Iv

e
s 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

T
o
ta

l 
 

1
0
,1

1
4
 

 
 

 

L
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

 
1
1
,5

7
5
 

 
 

 

   

21



 
- 
4
 -
 

  T
a
b
le

 3
. 
U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 

 

ID
 

D
a
te

 
R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

£
 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
n
e
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

re
sp

o
n
si
b
le

 

E
x
p
ir
y
 

D
a
te

 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

6
9
 

0
7
/
0
9
/
2
0
0
5
 

2
2
,4

8
9
.0

2
 

S
t 
Iv

e
s 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

e
is
u
re

 F
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

ff
-s

it
e
 w

it
h
in

 S
t 
Iv

e
s.

 H
D
C
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

la
y
 

p
ro

v
is
io

n
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 o
f 
S
t 
Iv

e
s.

  
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

7
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
0
 

9
3
 

2
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
0
6
 

1
1
,1

6
0
.9

3
 

F
a
rc

e
t 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
p
ro

v
is
io

n
 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
th

/
a
d
u
lt
 o

p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.

 F
a
rc

e
t 
P
a
ri
sh

 
C
o
u
n
c
il
/
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 
D
iv

is
io

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 
sc

h
e
m

e
. 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

2
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
6
 

1
1
3
  

2
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
1
,5

8
7
 

B
ra

m
p
to

n
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
le

is
u
re

 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

p
e
n
 

sp
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
1
6
  

0
8
/
0
3
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
1
,0

3
2
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts

 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s 
C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
p
ro

v
is
io

n
 

o
f 
c
h
il
d
re

n
 o

r 
a
d
u
lt
/
y
o
u
th

 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
la

y
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.

  
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 
w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 

sp
e
n
d
in

g
 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 S

t 
N
e
o
ts

 T
C
. 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
2
4
  

1
8
/
1
0
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
7
,3

0
7
 

R
a
m

se
y
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s:
 O

p
e
n
s 
sp

a
c
e
, 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re

 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s.
  
A
w

a
it
in

g
 s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 

sc
h
e
m

e
 f
ro

m
 R

a
m

se
y
 T

C
. 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 

2
2
9
 

2
8
/
0
1
/
0
8
 

9
,3

0
4
  

S
t 
N
e
o
ts

 
L
e
is
u
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
c
o
m

p
e
n
sa

ti
o
n
 s
u
m

 
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

2
8
/
0
1
/
2
0
1
3
 

2
2
9
 

2
8
/
0
1
/
0
8
 

1
2
,2

2
3
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts

 
L
e
is
u
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

2
8
/
0
1
/
2
0
1
3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

T
o
ta

l 
 

9
5
,1

0
3
 

 
 

 
 

L
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

 
1
0
1
,8

4
3
 

 
 

 
 

22



 
- 
5
 -
 

T
a
b
le

 4
. 
M

o
n
e
y
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
r 
tr

a
n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 
 

 

ID
 

D
a
te

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 
  
  
  
  
  
 

£
 

A
d
d
re

ss
 

S
p
e
n
d
 t
y
p
e
 

D
iv

is
io

n
 

3
 

2
0
/
0
1
/
2
0
0
7
 

5
,2

9
0
 

S
t 
Iv

e
s 

H
il
l 
R
is
e
 P

a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t 
P
la

y
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

7
5
 

0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
0
4
 

2
,7

8
7
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 

 B
u
s 
sh

e
lt
e
r 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

9
5
 

2
8
/
0
8
/
2
0
0
2
 

7
,6

9
5
 

A
lc

o
n
b
u
ry

 W
e
st

o
n
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
: 
b
u
s 
sh

e
lt
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

1
0
3
 

1
6
/
0
6
/
2
0
0
5
 

1
7
9
,9

3
6
 

E
y
n
e
sb

u
ry

 
L
e
is
u
re

 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s 
a
t 
S
t 
N
e
o
ts

 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 

L
e
is
u
re

 

2
3
5
  

2
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
0
7
 

1
1
,0

0
2
  

C
o
ln

e
 

O
ff

-s
it
e
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s:
 P

ro
v
is
io

n
 a

n
d
/
o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 

a
re

a
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s.
  
P
a
ri
sh

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 s
c
h
e
m

e
 

b
e
in

g
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 b

y
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 
te

a
m

. 
O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

2
4
8
 

2
7
/
0
7
/
2
0
0
7
 

2
2
,9

7
3
 

B
ra

m
p
to

n
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

 
T
o
ta

l 

  

2
2
9
,6

8
3
 

 
 

 

 
L
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
4
3
,2

1
4
 

 
 

 

      T
a
b
le

 5
. 
 N

o
n
-m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
st

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

23



 
- 
6
 -
 

 

3
3
 L
a
n
d
 (
A
t 
A
u
d
le
y
 

C
lo
s
e
) 

O
ff
 C
a
x
to
n
 R
o
a
d
 

G
re
a
t 

G
ra
n
s
d
e
n
 

1
.5
 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
P
O
S
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
r 
it
s
 n
o
m
in
e
e
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
0
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

9
2
 H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

P
a
rk
 R
o
a
d
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 
S
c
h
 4
 

P
a
rt
 1
 C
C
C
 s
h
a
ll 
a
p
p
ly
 t
h
e
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 C
o
n
tr
ib
tu
io
n
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
h
a
t 
s
a
ti
s
fy
 t
h
e
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
9
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

9
2
 H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
 

P
a
rk
 R
o
a
d
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 
S
c
h
 5
 

P
a
rt
 1
 T
o
 u
s
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
re
e
n
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
9
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

1
.1
 
S
u
b
m
it
te
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

1
.2
 
O
w
n
e
r 
to
 p
a
y
 a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
 i
n
 S
ta
g
e
 2
 S
a
fe
ty
 A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
S
ig
n
a
ls
 t
e
a
m
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

1
.3
 
O
w
n
e
r 
to
 p
a
y
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
lo
c
a
l 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
, 
a
 f
e
e
 o
f 
5
%
 o
f 

e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
 o
rd
e
rs
, 

c
o
s
ts
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
u
d
it
s
. 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 i
n
 1
.2
 a
n
d
 

1
.3
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
w
n
e
r 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

1
.5
 
A
n
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
o
r 
o
v
e
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 p
a
id
 t
o
 o
w
n
e
r 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

 
A
m
o
u
n
ts
 p
a
id
 i
n
 1
.2
 a
n
d
 1
.3
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 o
n
ly
 f
o
r 
L
o
c
a
l 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
M
in
im
is
in
g
 o
f 
c
o
s
ts
, 
s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 

g
o
o
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 o
w
n
e
r.
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
0
1
 L
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 O
f 

C
o
lm
w
o
rt
h
 B
ro
o
k
 

A
n
d
 V
u
lc
a
n
 W
a
y
 

E
a
to
n
 

S
o
c
o
n
 

 
M
o
n
e
y
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 o
w
n
e
r 
if
 s
u
m
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 5
 y
e
a
rs
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
4
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
3
4
  

M
o
o
rh
o
u
s
e
 D
ri
v
e
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 
1
 

S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 &
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 3
0
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
3
7
 L
a
n
d
 n
o
rt
h
 o
f 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
 R
o
a
d
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 

2
.1
 
P
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 d
ra
ft
 R
a
ilw
a
y
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 3
0
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
3
7
 L
a
n
d
 n
o
rt
h
 o
f 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
 R
o
a
d
 

S
t 
N
e
o
ts
 

6
.1
 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
it
e
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 3
0
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
1
8
 L
a
n
d
 a
t 

P
a
rk
w
a
y
 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 
2
.1
 
O
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
la
y
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 0
5
/1
1
/2
0
0
8
 

2
6
7
  

P
ri
n
c
e
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
 
1
.1
 
A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
3
5
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 0
2
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
7
5
  

N
e
w
 R
o
a
d
 

O
ff
o
rd
 C
lu
n
y
 1
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
it
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
la
n
d
lo
rd
 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 0
1
/1
0
/2
0
0
8
 

2
7
5
  

N
e
w
 R
o
a
d
 

O
ff
o
rd
 C
lu
n
y
 6
 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
s
 o
f 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

£
0
.0
0
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 0
4
/1
1
/2
0
0
8
 

 

24



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
-
F
u
tu
re

S
1
0
6
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

L
is
te
d
b
y
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
-
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d

T
h
is

re
p
o
rt

s
h
o
w
s
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
c
la
u
s
e
s
w
it
h
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
m
o
n
ie
s
fr
o
m

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

th
a
t
h
a
v
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
b
u
t
w
h
e
re

tr
ig
g
e
r
p
o
in
ts

fo
r
th
e
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f
th
e
m
o
n
ie
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
e
t
b
e
e
n
re
a
c
h
e
d
.

S
p
e
n
d
A
re
a

ID
A
d
d
re
s
s
(L
in
e
2
)

S
p
e
n
d
T
y
p
e

C
la
u
s
e
A
m
o
u
n
t

(!
)

S
p
e
n
d
in
g
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t

B
u
ry

8
2

B
u
ry

R
o
a
d

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
8
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

E
y
n
e
s
b
u
ry

1
0
3

B
a
rf
o
rd

R
o
a
d

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
0
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

F
e
n
s
ta
n
to
n

1
7
3

H
e
a
d
la
n
d
s

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
5
,6
7
9

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

G
o
d
m
a
n
c
h
e
s
te
r

1
9
9

R
o
m
a
n
W
a
y

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
4
,5
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
8
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
4
4

L
o
n
d
o
n
R
o
a
d

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
5
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
6
1

W
ig
m
o
re

F
a
rm

S
ilv
e
r
S
tr
e
e
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
1
.p
a
rt

!
1
2
8
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
2
.p
a
rt

!
1
2
8
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
3
1
,1
2
5

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
7
5
,5
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
8
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
1
2
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
ri
m
a
ry

H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
3
9
,7
7
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
1
.p
a
rt

!
8
2
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
2
.p
a
rt

!
8
2
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

H
o
u
g
h
to
n
&

W
y
to
n

2
5
6

T
h
ic
k
e
t
R
o
a
d

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n

7
5

K
in
g
s
R
ip
to
n
R
o
a
d

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
1
9
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
6
,1
2
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

1
8
6

H
in
c
h
in
g
b
ro
o
k
e
P
a
rk

R
o
a
d

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
7
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
3
7
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
1
8

P
a
rk
w
a
y

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
9
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
3
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
9
,5
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
2
0

U
lls
w
a
te
r
a
n
d
H
a
n
d
s
c
ro
ft
L
a
n
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
2
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
5
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
3
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
9
,5
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
6
0

S
t
P
e
te
r'
s
R
o
a
d

C
y
c
le

P
a
th
s

!
9
8
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
6
7

P
ri
n
c
e
s
S
tr
e
e
t

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
5
2
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
6
9

S
a
p
le
y
R
o
a
d

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
1
,7
6
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
2
,0
6
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e

2
4
4

L
o
n
d
o
n
R
o
a
d

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
2
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
5
6

T
h
ic
k
e
t
R
o
a
d

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

H
o
u
s
in
g
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
4
2
,7
9
1

H
o
u
s
in
g

K
im

b
o
lt
o
n
&

2
6
8

C
o
n
s
ta
b
le

L
e
y
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
6
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

S
to
n
e
ly

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
1
4
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

N
o
te
:
T
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty

o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re

p
a
id

to
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
a
n
d
a
re

u
s
e
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
th
e
d
is
tr
ic
t
c
o
u
n
c
il
.

25



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
-
F
u
tu
re

S
1
0
6
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

L
is
te
d
b
y
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
-
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d

T
h
is

re
p
o
rt

s
h
o
w
s
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
c
la
u
s
e
s
w
it
h
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
m
o
n
ie
s
fr
o
m

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

th
a
t
h
a
v
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
b
u
t
w
h
e
re

tr
ig
g
e
r
p
o
in
ts

fo
r
th
e
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f
th
e
m
o
n
ie
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
e
t
b
e
e
n
re
a
c
h
e
d
.

S
p
e
n
d
A
re
a

ID
A
d
d
re
s
s
(L
in
e
2
)

S
p
e
n
d
T
y
p
e

C
la
u
s
e
A
m
o
u
n
t

(!
)

S
p
e
n
d
in
g
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t

L
it
tl
e
P
a
x
to
n

2
2
3

M
ill
L
a
n
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
4
6
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
2
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
2
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
3
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
4
,5
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
ri
m
a
ry

H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
6
,0
0
0

P
ri
m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru
s
t

!
6
6
,0
0
0

P
ri
m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru
s
t

!
6
8
,0
0
0

P
ri
m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru
s
t

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

S
t
Iv
e
s

2
6
4

E
a
s
t
S
tr
e
e
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
3
3
,4
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

P
la
y
E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
2
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

S
t
N
e
o
ts

2
2
3

M
ill
L
a
n
e

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
1
.p
a
rt

!
2
2
1
,5
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
2
.p
a
rt

!
2
2
1
,5
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
2
9

B
u
s
h
m
e
a
d
R
o
a
d

A
m
e
n
it
y
S
tr
ip

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
7
,2
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
8
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
3
1

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
S
tr
e
e
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
4
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
9
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
4
2
,8
4
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
3
6

5
1
6
G
re
a
t
N
o
rt
h
R
o
a
d

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
2
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
1
4
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
3
7

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
R
o
a
d

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
6
2
5
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
6
2
5
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
6
2
5
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
1
,1
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
1
,1
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
7
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
5
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
3
0
0
,0
0
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

!
1
0
,0
0
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
2
0
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
7
8
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
4
6
,8
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
1
7
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

N
o
te
:
T
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty

o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re

p
a
id

to
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
a
n
d
a
re

u
s
e
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
th
e
d
is
tr
ic
t
c
o
u
n
c
il
.

26



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
-
F
u
tu
re

S
1
0
6
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

L
is
te
d
b
y
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
-
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d

T
h
is

re
p
o
rt

s
h
o
w
s
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
c
la
u
s
e
s
w
it
h
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
m
o
n
ie
s
fr
o
m

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

th
a
t
h
a
v
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
b
u
t
w
h
e
re

tr
ig
g
e
r
p
o
in
ts

fo
r
th
e
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f
th
e
m
o
n
ie
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
e
t
b
e
e
n
re
a
c
h
e
d
.

S
p
e
n
d
A
re
a

ID
A
d
d
re
s
s
(L
in
e
2
)

S
p
e
n
d
T
y
p
e

C
la
u
s
e
A
m
o
u
n
t

(!
)

S
p
e
n
d
in
g
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
5
1
5
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
3
6
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
2
,0
1
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
1
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
1
0
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
5
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
6
3
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
7
3

C
o
lm

w
o
rt
h
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
P
a
rk

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
2
,5
6
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

W
a
rb
o
y
s

1
7
4

P
o
p
e
s
L
a
n
e

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
1
,0
4
3

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
1
0

o
ff
H
ig
h
F
e
n
S
tr
a
ig
h
t
D
ro
v
e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
5
,0
0
0

T
ru
s
t
F
u
n
d

2
1
7

P
o
p
la
r
F
a
rm

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
1
,2
0
6

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

Y
a
x
le
y

1
8
7

B
ro
a
d
w
a
y

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
5
4
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
1
2

B
ro
a
d
w
a
y

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
9
7
,0
0
0

C
C
C

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
2
,1
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
9
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
5
2

C
h
u
rc
h
S
tr
e
e
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
6
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

!
2
6
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
3
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
3
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
8
,3
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
2
5
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
7
5
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

G
ra
n
d
T
o
ta
l

!
1
2
,4
9
4
,2
5
4

N
o
te
:
T
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty

o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re

p
a
id

to
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
a
n
d
a
re

u
s
e
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
th
e
d
is
tr
ic
t
c
o
u
n
c
il
.

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

C
-
F
u
tu
re

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l
S
1
0
6
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

L
is
te
d
b
y
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
-
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

n
o
t
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d

T
h
is

re
p
o
rt
s
h
o
w
s
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
c
la
u
s
e
s
w
it
h
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
m
o
n
ie
s
fr
o
m

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

th
a
t
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
e
t
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
w
o
rk
.

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

ID
A
d
d
re
s
s

S
p
e
n
d
T
y
p
e

A
m
o
u
n
t

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
(!
)

S
e
rv
ic
e
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

A
b
b
o
ts
le
y

2
0
0

R
e
c
to
ry

R
o
a
d

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
1
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

B
lu
n
ti
s
h
a
m

2
0
0

R
e
c
to
ry

R
o
a
d

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
3
,1
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

C
o
ln
e

2
0
3

E
a
s
t
S
tr
e
e
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
3
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

H
e
m
in
g
fo
rd

G
re
y

2
6
2

L
o
n
d
o
n
R
o
a
d

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
,5
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
8
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
1
6
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n

1
1
3

3
2
H
ig
h
S
tr
e
e
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

2
3
0

T
h
a
m
e
s
R
o
a
d

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
1
,0
4
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
4
8
,6
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

O
p
e
n
S
p
a
c
e
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
4
0
,1
7
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
6
,1
8
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

2
3
3

B
u
s
D
e
p
o
t
S
it
e
1
5
S
tu
k
e
le
y
R
d

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

2
5
1

L
a
n
c
a
s
te
r
H
o
u
s
e

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
3
,7
5
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
6
5

B
ra
m
p
to
n
R
o
a
d

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
4
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

L
it
tl
e
P
a
x
to
n

2
2
2

B
y
d
a
n
d
L
a
n
e
&
re
a
r
o
f
P
a
rk

C
re
s
c
e
n
t
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
4
,4
5
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
6
,1
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
ri
m
a
ry

H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
4
,0
0
0

H
u
n
ti
n
g
d
o
n
s
h
ir
e
P
C
T

R
a
m
s
e
y

2
2
6

B
u
ry

R
o
a
d

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
3
,4
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
7
,0
0
0

H
D
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
4
3

1
1
7
A
H
e
rn
e
R
o
a
d

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le

H
o
u
s
in
g
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
7
4
,5
2
0

H
o
u
s
in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
,7
5
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
5
,4
5
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

S
a
w
tr
y

1
8
0

G
id
d
in
g
R
o
a
d

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
6
,7
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

S
t
Iv
e
s

2
3
9

H
o
u
g
h
to
n
G
ra
n
g
e

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
0
,0
0
0

L
e
is
u
re

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
7
2
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
3
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
ri
m
a
ry

H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
8
,1
2
6

P
o
lic
y
a
n
d
S
tr
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
5
9
,3
9
6

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
4
4
,5
4
7

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
4
4
,5
4
7

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
1
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
6
5
,0
0
0

H
D
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

N
o
te
:
T
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty

o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re

p
a
id

to
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
a
n
d
a
re

u
s
e
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
th
e
d
is
tr
ic
t
c
o
u
n
c
il.

1

29



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

C
-
F
u
tu
re

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l
S
1
0
6
B
e
n
e
fi
ts

L
is
te
d
b
y
L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
-
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

n
o
t
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d

T
h
is

re
p
o
rt
s
h
o
w
s
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
6
c
la
u
s
e
s
w
it
h
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
m
o
n
ie
s
fr
o
m

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

th
a
t
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
e
t
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
w
o
rk
.

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

ID
A
d
d
re
s
s

S
p
e
n
d
T
y
p
e

A
m
o
u
n
t

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
(!
)

S
e
rv
ic
e
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le

2
4
2

H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
o
a
d

P
la
y
A
re
a
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
8
0
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
2
5
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
ri
m
a
ry

H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
1
,9
5
2

P
o
lic
y
a
n
d
S
tr
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
8
4
,3
6
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
6
3
,2
7
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
6
3
,2
7
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
1
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
3
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
5
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
5
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
5
4

O
rc
h
a
rd

H
o
u
s
e
H
o
u
g
h
to
n
R
o
a
d

P
la
y
A
re
a
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
7
2
,0
0
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

P
ri
m
a
ry

H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
9
,1
3
2

P
o
lic
y
a
n
d
S
tr
.

S
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
8
4
,1
8
4

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
1
6
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
8
0
,3
5
2

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

S
t
N
e
o
ts

2
3
8

1
5
C
h
u
rc
h
V
ie
w

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
ff
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
3
0
,7
5
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
6
0
,0
0
0

C
C
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
7
0

K
in
g
s
L
a
n
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
2
0
,0
4
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
8
6
7

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

!
1
5
,4
5
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

O
n
-s
it
e
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

!
6
,1
8
0

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

Y
a
x
le
y

1
9
5

B
ro
a
d
w
a
y

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
2
,0
0
0

H
D
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

!
8
,0
0
0

H
D
C

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n

2
2
1

w
e
s
t
o
f
3
L
o
n
d
o
n
R
o
a
d

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

!
1
4
,0
0
0

C
C
C

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

G
ra
n
d
T
o
ta
l

!
2
,0
3
0
,1
3
3

N
o
te
:
T
h
e
m
a
jo
ri
ty

o
f
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re

p
a
id

to
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
a
n
d
a
re

u
s
e
d
in

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

w
it
h
th
e
d
is
tr
ic
t
c
o
u
n
c
il.

2

30



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 D
 

 T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 d
e
ta
il
s 
S
1
0
6
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm

is
si
o
n
s 
th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 e
x
p
ir
e
d
.  

 ID
 n
o
 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
A
d
d
re

ss
 

A
m
o
u
n
t 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
y
p
e
 

D
e
st
in
a
ti
o
n
 

2
0
9
 

S
t 
Iv
e
s 

M
e
a
d
o
w
 L
a
n
e
: 
E
re
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

o
ff
ic
e
s 

3
5
,0
0
0
 

C
o
n
tr
o
ll
e
d
 P
e
d
e
st
ri
a
n
 C
ro
ss
in
g
 

C
C
C
 T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 

 
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

 7
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY   
SERVICE DELIVERY PANEL                                     2nd December  2008  
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
SERVICE SUPPORT  PANEL                           9th   December  2008  
 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
(Report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services) 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members performance 

management information on “Growing Success” – the Council’s 
Corporate Plan 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 In September 2008 the Council adopted an updated Plan which 

includes 37 short, medium and long term objectives to help achieve 
aims and ambitions for Huntingdonshire’s communities and the 
Council itself.  In addition the Council have identified a smaller 
number (8) of objectives which were considered to be a priority for 
the immediate future. 

3. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
3.1 Progress against all 37 objectives are reported to Chief Officer 

Management Team quarterly on a service basis.  A progress report 
from each Division includes performance data in the form of 
achievement against a target for each of the objectives that those 
services contribute towards. This is supported by narrative on 
achievements, other issues or risks and budgeting information.  In 
addition, a working group jointly appointed by the Panels continues 
to meet quarterly to monitor progress in the achievement of the Plan 
and to consider development issues. 

 
3.2 Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Panels have an important role 

in the Council’s Performance Management Framework and the 
process of regular review of performance data has been established.  
In adopting the updated version of Growing Success, and in 
particular in prioritising objectives, it was intended that Members 
should concentrate their monitoring on a small number of objectives 
to enable them to adopt a strategic overview while building 
confidence that the Council priorities are being achieved.  

 
3.3 Members of the Panels will also find broader performance 

information of help to them in undertaking their review and scrutiny 
functions.  This information can be provided on a regular or ad-hoc 
basis. 

 
3.4 The priority objectives have been allocated between Panels as 

follows: 

 

Agenda Item 7

33



 

 

Service Support  Service Delivery  

To promote development 
opportunities in and around the 
market towns 

To help mitigate and adapt to 
climate change 

Effective Partnership To enable the provision of 
affordable housing  

To be an employer people want to 
work for 

To achieve a low level of 
homelessness  

Maximise business and income 
opportunities including external 
funding and grants 

To promote active lifestyles 

 
4. PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 

4.1 The following performance data is appended for consideration: 
 
 Annex A - a summary of achievements, issues and risks relating to 

the objectives identified by the Heads of Service. 
 
 Annex B - Performance data from services which contribute to the 

Council objectives.  For each measure there is a target, actual 
performance against target, forecast performance for the next period 
and a comments field.  The data is colour coded as follows: 

 

• green – achieving target or above; 
• amber – between target and an “intervention level (the level at 

which performance is considered to be unacceptable and action is 
required); 

• red – the intervention level or below; and 
• grey - data not unavailable 
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Members are recommended to; 

 Consider the results of performance for priority objectives and to 
Comment to the cabinet as appropriate.  

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Performance Management reports produced from the Council’s CPMF software 
system 
 
Growing Success: Corporate Plan 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Howard Thackray, Policy & Research Manager 

 (((( 01480 388035 

34



SERVICE DELIVERY (up to 30th September 2008) ANNEX A 
 

Objective  Comments from appropriate Head of Service 
Achievements: Energy efficiency - Local energy efficiency events/promotions ongoing 

Renewable energy, HDC Solar grants scheme uptake encouraging (circa 20 installed) 
Travel and emissions to air - St Ives Outdoor Centre: new cycleway in progress.  
Island Common cycleway in progress with completion December 2008. 
Yaxley cycleway and Sallowbush to Oxmoor Lane cycleway works are due to start on site in February 
2009 
Adapting to climate change - Development of Countywide approach to reporting on NI 188 
(Adaptation to Climate Change) 
 

Issues: Develop further and convene Environment Forum 

To help mitigate and 
adapt to climate change 

Risks: Closer integration of key findings of the Carbon appraisal of the Cambridge sub region LTDP and 
HDC LIF are critical to the delivery of long term carbon reduction measures to meet targets for: 
energy saving, combating climate change and meeting government targets NI 186 and 188 
Ongoing lack of guidance from DEFRA means potential failure to report on NI 187 (fuel poverty). 

Achievements: Leisure - Swimming, despite the closure in St Neots, exceeds target (53%). Active card holder 
numbers remain on target and over 61,000 now hold Leisure cards. 
Leisure Development - Health Walks programme has proved increasingly popular with throughput 
52% up on last year, school activities (festivals, clubs and events) are up 20% on last year. Overall 
throughput in Leisure Development activities as a whole are up 6% on last year and participants are 
up 23% 

Issues: Leisure - An 18,000 admissions increase (2%) from last year but a 15,000 shortfall (2%) on half-year 
target. The extended closure of St Neots Pool (estimated 10,000 visits lost), and the delayed opening 
of the new facilities at Huntingdon have both contributed to this position 
Leisure Development Issues over the last few months have included staff turnover, recruitment 
difficulties, balancing new projects with existing programmes, and delays in lottery funded 
programmes due to external factors 

To promote active 
lifestyles 

Risks: Leisure - There is concern over effect of credit squeeze with a recent increased number of 
cancellations of Direct Debit for both swimming lessons and for Impressions/Advantage membership 
Leisure Development  - The longevity of funding streams. 

To achieve a low level of 
homelessness  

Achievements: •       75 households were prevented from becoming homeless in Q2 of the year, compared to 33 in 

the same period last year. 
•        55 households were accepted as homelessness in Q2 compared to 34 in the same period last 

year. 
•        A reduction in the number of households in temporary accommodation, from 81 households at 

the start of the quarter to 77 at the end. 
• Huntingdon Law Centre has been commissioned to provide a County Court Advice and Support 

3
5



Desk for mortgage repossession hearings. 
•  

 

Issues: • Review of the Register’s new priority ‘banding’ system to ensure that it does not have an impact 
on the prevention of homelessness or restrict homeless households from moving on from 
temporary accommodation.  To feed into a full review of Home-Link that will be carried out 
within 12 months of it being launched.  This review will be carried out sub regionally. 

•           RSL progressing the search to acquire a move on property to enable the provision of ‘crash pad’ 

emergency bed provision for young people at Paines Mill Foyer in St Neots (LAA Reward Grant 
funding).  

•         Supporting Kings Ripton Court in Huntingdon with a second bid for Housing Corporation capital 
funding to provide 4 emergency units for young people and improved training facilities  

• Assess options for remodelling of Coneygear Court to provide self contained units rather than 
shared facilities. 

•         Assess the options for providing a supported lodgings scheme for young people threatened with 
homelessness 

 

Risks: • National and/or local economic factors could increase demand. 
•        Not delivering increased emergency accommodation facilities at Paines Mill Foyer and Kings 

Ripton Court in accordance with LAA reward grant. 
•         RSL not successful in Housing Corporation bid to redevelop its homelessness hostel. 
 

Achievements: • Secured £60k Housing Corporation Grant for two units at Whitwell Farm, Offord Cluny (total for 
year to date £1,178,000) 

• 50 affordable homes were completed (Total for the year to date 80 +14 Homebuy) 
 

Issues: • Complete village needs survey for Needingworth (delayed from last quarter because the Rural 
Housing Enabler was not in post 

To enable the provision 
of affordable housing 
 

Risks: Availability of Housing Corporation funding via the bidding process 
Potential impacts of a prolonged downturn in the housing/development market on the delivery of 
affordable housing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
6



SERVICE DELIVERY (up to 30th September 2008) ANNEX B 
 

 Community/Council Aim: A Clean, Green and Attractive place 

Objective: To help mitigate and adapt to climate change 

Division: Planning 

Divisional Objective: To encourage sustainable forms of development 

Key activity(s) only to deliver service objective Key Measure Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Include sustainable policies within LDF (to set a 
sustainable policy framework) 

Core Strategy – Adherence to LDF timetable, on target to be adopted 
by August 2009 (1=Yes, 0=No) 

1 1 1 
Examination in public expected 
March 09 

QRT 

Division: Environmental Management 

Divisional Objective: To Lower Carbon Emissions 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 
Complete an annual review & update of Growing 
Awareness a plan for our environment & ensure that 
the MTP funding is committed by the Council to 
deliver on going carbon dioxide reduction 

Year 1 actions identified in Environment Strategy on target (1=Yes, 
0=No) 

1 1 1 

Work to tie in Environment 
Strategy indicators with 
corporate and service plan 
indicators underway. Review of 
year 1 progress to be complete 
by September 2009. 

QRT 

Identify areas of joint working with stakeholders to 
help deliver aims of Growing Awareness. 

HSP Environment Forum to meet at least twice annually (1=Yes, 0 = 
No) 

1 1 1 

Head of Environmental 
Management considering most 
appropriate format for 
reconvening the Environment 
forum during the current 
Financial Year. 

QRT 

Identify opportunities to reduce CO2 emissions from 
the Council’s own operations 

Production of HDC Carbon Management Plan by 31st March 2009 (on 
target 1=Yes, 0 = No) 

1 1 1 

Draft Carbon Management Plan 
to be prepared by 1st 
December 2008, presentation 
of 'the case for action' to COMT 
after this date, plan then 
finalised by 31st March 2009 

QRT 

 

On target (1=Yes, 0=No) to achieve a 6% carbon saving from council 
estate.(cumulative quarterly measure) 

1 1 1 

Baseline CO2 production for 
2007 has been established, 
Carbon Management Plan to be 
in place by 31st March 2009, 
will include a target for reducing 
the Council's Carbon emissions 
by 30% over five years, with 
year on year reductions 
identified 

QRT 

Oversee the implementation of the Environment 
Strategy projects % of Environment Strategy Year 1 projects on target 75 77 75 

Year one funded Environment 
Strategy Projects seven out of 
nine on track. 

QRT 

Promote energy efficiency and use of renewable 
energy to householders 

Number of tonnes of CO2 saved through installation of energy 
efficiency measures and renewables in domestic properties 
(cumulative quarterly measure) 

   
Target still to be agreed will 
report indicator from third 
quarter 08/09. 

QRT 

Promote Energy Efficiency to householders through 
the Warmer Homes For Life Scheme 

% of applications for loft and Cavity Wall Insulation received under the 
scheme replied to within 5 working days 

95 86 95 
System now in place to ensure 
turnaround of applications 
within target timescale 

QRT 

Retro fit project - procurement of Housing stock   Retro fit project - procurement of Housing stock by March 09 (on 1 1 1 Short list of 6 potential QRT 

3
7



target 1 = Yes, 0 = No) properties has now been 
reduced to three posibilities 
(two of which will be 
purchased). 
 
Two bedroom 1970s semi-
detached, 
Chalet Bungalow (1970s), 
Victorian Solid wall property. 
 
Planning to work in partnership 
with the Buildings Research 
Establishment (BRE) to deliver 
the project, tender currently 
being finalised. 

Undertake risk-based assessment of current 
vulnerabilities to weather and climate changes and 
identify adaptation responses 

Local risk based assessment complete by Sept 09 to achieve level 1 
of NI188 on target (1=Yes, 0 = No) 

1 1 1 

Plan to prepare a Local Climate 
Impact Assessment (LCLIP) 
showing the local impacts of 
severe weather incidents in the 
district over the last five years. 
This study will then inform the 
preparation of a local risk based 
assessment of council services, 
enabling compliance with the 
indicator. 

QRT 

Update existing and extend Travel Plans to all of the 
Council’s employment sites and implement to achieve 
a modal shift away from single occupant car use 

% of council employees travelling alone to work by car (previously 
65%) 

65   
Annual measure data to follow 

YRL 

Community/Council Aim: Healthy Living 

Objective: To Promote healthy lifestyle choices 

Division: Leisure  

Divisional Objective: To Increase participation in healthy physical activities   

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Maintain and improve standard of facilities and match 
facility provision with usage demand. 

Number of admissions/participants in activities provided or promoted 
by the Council (1.75m per annum) cumulative quarterly target) 

887,774 
872,80
9 

 

Admissions lower than 
expected over Summer 
holidays. Also late opening of 
new development at HLC, pool 
one month closed at SNLC, 
Astro pitch closed 6 weeks at 
SNLC. 

QRT 

Promotion and marketing of available activities  Number of active card holders by March 08 18,587 18,455   QRT 

Division: Lifestyles 

Divisional Objective: To promote healthy lifestyle choices 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Provide a range of accessible leisure opportunities 
such as: a Holiday Activity Programme for <17 yrs 
(SCS measure) 

Total throughput of school, outreach and holiday activity Programmes 
(cumulative quarterly target) 

1,675 2,949   QRT 

Provide and facilitate arts activities directly and in 
partnership 

Throughput of people (target 8500 per ann) experiencing arts 
interventions as a result of Arts Service and Partner activities during 
2008/09 (cumulative quarterly target) 

6750 6993   QRT 

3
8



Provide targeted schemes to enable vulnerable 
people to participate in physical leisure activities (inc 
Exercise Referral, Community Sports and Recreation 
Project, Community Sports Network and Active Life 
scheme.) (SCS measure 2.1.5) 

Throughput on identified schemes (cumulative quarterly target) 7,750 8,929   QRT 

Provide under-represented groups with the 
opportunity to participate in sport and active recreation 
(SCS measure) 

Total throughput of activity programme for disabled participants and 
under-represented groups (cumulative quarterly target) 

700 858  
 

QRT 

Support vulnerable people to be more active, Cardiac 
Rehabilitation programme and Health walks 

Total throughput of the Cardiac Rehabilitation programme and Health 
walks in Huntingdonshire (cumulative quarterly target) 

3600 4,688  

 

QRT 

Community/Council Aim: Housing that meets the local need 

Objective: To achieve a low level of homelessness 

Division: Housing 

Divisional Objective: To achieve a low level of homelessness 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

By helping to prevent people from becoming 
homeless by housing homeless people where 
appropriate 

Numbers of households (135)  prevented from becoming homeless 
each year to 2009 (cumulative quarterly target) 

115 129  

Achieving target will depend on 
external factors for the rest of 
the year (i.e. mortgage 
repossession rates). Having 
achieved 129 against a notional 
target for Q2 of 115, we are on 
track to achieve this target. 

QRT 

 
(NI 156) No. of households living in temporary accommodation 
(cumulative quarterly target) 

76 77 64 

Achieving target will depend on 
external factors for the rest of 
the year (i.e. mortgage 
repossession rates) 

 

Community/Council Aim: Developing communities sustainably  

Objective: To enable the provision of affordable housing 

Division: Housing 

Divisional Objective: To enable the provision of affordable housing 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

By maximising the land available for new affordable 
housing. By working in partnership with Housing 
Associations to bid for external funding. By making a 
financial contribution to pay for affordable homes to be 
built 

 
 
(NI 155) Number of new affordable homes built by March 2009 
(cumulative quarterly target)  64 286 

The Countywide NI155 target is 
presently being disaggregated 
to district Council level (the 
target is set as a County target). 
286 homes are projected for the 
district by the end of the 
financial year 2008/2009 

QRT 

Division: Planning 

Divisional Objective: Maximise provision of affordable housing on relevant development sites 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

% of housing completions on qualifying sites that are affordable (in 
CSR) 

40   
Annual measure data to follow 
 

YRL 
Develop Core Strategy and Development Control 
Policies DPD (to set policy framework)/Adopt Planning 
Obligations SPD (to set specific targets and 
thresholds)/Negotiate S106 Agreements (to deliver 

% of housing completions on qualifying sites that are affordable (out of 
CSR) 

29   Annual measure data to follow YRL 

3
9



required amounts of affordable housing) 

% of affordable housing (commitments) on qualifying sites 40 29  

**Two of the qualifying sites are 
the allocation at East of the 
Railway St Neots, which is 
coming forward in several 
parcels over a period of time, 
and therefore difficult to monitor 
in quarters – some parcels have 
100% affordable and others 
0%. Another site had the 
affordable element agreed at 
outline stage which pre-dated 
PPS3 and would have been 
based on the then target of 29% 
 
***Only one qualifying site 
outside CSR, which had no 
affordable element as it was 
agreed the developer will 
instead provide a library and 
community meeting rooms 
(Ramsey Grand) 

QRT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
0



SERVICE SUPPORT (up to 30th September 2008)                                                                                                             ANNEX A 
 

Objective   

Achievements: Creative Exchange centre opens in November, (contributes towards employment and job growth in 
St Neots).  

Issues: Development of Northern Gate (Ramsey Enterprise Centre)) may be affected by the economic 
climate and reduction in external funding 

To promote development 
opportunities in and 
around the market towns 

Risks: Contract being negotiated with NWES to manage the Creative Enterprise centre possible risk that 
year 1 external funding partner targets may not be met.  

Achievements: Sustainable Community Strategy and LAA: action/delivery plan phase under way 
LPSA – funding approved, money to be released quarterly linked to outcomes 

Issues: SCS - Review underway on governance issues of Strategic Partnerships including implementation 
of Cambridgeshire Together and LAA structures 
Need to ensure/co-ordinate  

Effective Partnership 

Risks: HDC approach and further performance management development needed. 

Achievements: Successful appointment to Training Advisor and Training Support Officer posts.  Roll out of H & S 
Strategy & Action Plan under way.  Programme agreed for review of People Strategy. 

Issues: Resources needed to continue operational improvements including policy review and 
implementation of HR & Payroll systems may not be available.  May need support to undertake 
strategic review of HR. 

To be an employer 
people want to work for 

Risks: Vacancies may impact on achievement of improvement programme. 

Achievements: External Funding: review of strategy approved to maximise funding for Council underway.   

Issues: Clear external funding action plans need to be identified at service level 

Maximise business and 
income opportunities 
including external funding 
and grants Risks: Failure to achieve external funding means projects may not be able to proceed 

 

4
1



 
 

SERVICE SUPPORT (up to 30th September 2008)                                                                                                                            ANNEX B 
 
 

Community/Council Aim: Developing communities sustainably 

Objective: To promote development opportunities in and around the market towns 

Division: Planning 

Divisional Objective: To promote development opportunities in and around the market towns 
Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Develop strategic policy to promote well being 
of our market towns 

Adoption of Core Strategy on target to be adopted 
by August 2009 (1=Yes, 0=No) 

1 1  
Examination in public expected March 
09 QRT 

 

Division: Policy and Strategic Services 

Divisional Objective: To promote development opportunities in and around the market towns 
Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 

Implementation of the projects (that contribute 
market town development) in the Local 
Economy strategy 

% of LES actions/milestones on track 90 100 100 

Projects include , development of local 
supply chains, promotion of creative 
industry, digital needs of businesses 
and visitor promotion 

QRT 

Community/Council Aim: To improve our systems and practices 

Objective: Effective Partnerships 

Division: Policy and Strategic Services 

Divisional Objective: Develop and adopt a sustainable community strategy 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 
Develop and refine SCS action plans by March 
09 

on target (1=Yes, =No) 1 1 1  QRT 

Deliver and measure performance against 
action plans for 09/10 

% of SCS themed group action plans on target to be 
delivered in 2009/10 

70   
Will be available to measure from April 
2009 QRT 

Divisional Objective: Effective Partnership framework QRT 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments:  

Develop, implement and monitor 
strategic/operational partnership review 
programme 

Partnership review programme on target (1=yes, 
0=No) 

1 1 1 

Review programme of Strategic 
partnerships agreed. Database of 
Operational/strategic partnerships 
being developed.  Following 
evaluation of these a review 
programme will be created. 
Review of Governance arrangements 
on HSP completed. 
Governance review of CT (LAA 
Board) being implemented. 
 

QRT 

4
2



Community/Council Aim: To learn and develop 

Objective: To be and Employer People Wish to Work For 

Division: HR 

Divisional Objective: To attract and retain staff 

Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments: 
Policies and procedures that keep up to date 
with modern working patterns 

Review programme on target for adoption by Dec 
2008  (1 = Yes, 0 = No) 

1 1   YRL 

Recruitment package % of posts filled within one round of recruitment 90 93   QRT 

 % of filled posts (for permanent staff) at anyone time 97 99.3    

To ensure a culture in which staff are able to 
work to their full potential 

Biennial staff survey – % level of satisfaction 80   
Next survey due Autumn 2009, (71% 
Autumn 2007)  

Community/Council Aim: To maintain sound finances 

Objective: Maximise business and income opportunities including external funding and grants 

Division: Leisure 

Divisional Objective: Maximise leisure centre income 
Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments:  

Maximise leisure centre income 
Actual income received compared to budget 
(cumulative quarterly target) 

£2,384,00
0 

£ 
2,240,
000 

 
Late opening of new facilities at HLC 
(additional building works) and loss of 
swimming income at St Neots. 

QRT 

Maintain expenditure within budget 
Actual expenditure compared to budget cumulative 
quarterly target 

£ 
3,407,000 

£ 
2,824,
000 

 
 

QRT 

Division: Policy and Strategic Services 

Divisional Objective: To be aware of appropriate funding opportunities and communicate to the appropriate service 
Key Activity(s) only to deliver service objective: Key Measure: Target: Actual Forecast Comments:  

Co ordinate and maintain a system of internal 
control via funding Database, liaise with 
appropriate officers, provide funding advice 
and assistance in compilation of bids, as 
required 

% of bids which attract funding,( year to date) 70 76  

21 bids submitted of which 16 were 
successful 

QRT 

 
External Funding strategy on target to be completed 
by March 2009 (1=Yes, 0=No) 

1 1  
 

QRT 

 

4
3



44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SERVICE SUPPORT)                9
th
 DECEMBER 2008 

 

WORK PLAN:  STUDIES 

(Report by the Head of Administration) 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Members of the Panel to review their 

programme of studies. 

 

2. STUDIES 

 
2.1 The Council has a duty to improve the social, environmental and economic 

well-being of the District.  This gives the Overview and Scrutiny Panels a wide 
remit to examine any issues that affect the District by conducting in-depth 
studies. 

 
2.2 Studies are allocated according to the current Executive responsibilities. 

These were advised in agreement with the Panel Chairmen with effect from 
September 2008. 

  

 Service Delivery:     Service Support: 
 
 Customer Services &     Finance & Environment 
 Information Technology    Resources & Policy                         
 Leisure      Planning Strategy /Transportation  
 Housing & Public Health    Special Advisor to the Cabinet 
 Operational & Countryside Services      
 

2.3 Ongoing studies have been allocated between the Panels accordingly –  
 
  

STUDY PANEL STATUS 

 

Cleaning Regimes in Town 
Centres 

Service Delivery Study concluded. 
Cabinet has endorsed in 
principle, the Panel’s 
recommendations. 
 

Process and Procedures 
involved with the adoption of 
roads and sewers. 

Service Delivery Investigations ongoing. 
Information being sought 
from the County Council 
and Anglian Water. 
Further meeting to be 
arranged. 
 

The Processes involved in 
Applying for Community Grant 
Aid and the Effectiveness of 
Grant Schemes. 

Service Delivery Panel has considered 
the Working Group’s 
final report. Due to 
appear before the 
Cabinet at a future 
meeting. 
 

Disability Access Service Delivery Completion of study 
anticipated by the end of 
2008 /early 2009. 
 

Section 106 Service Support Update to be provided to 
December meeting. 
 

Social Consequences of Alcohol 
Abuse 

Service Support Further meeting held on 
24

th
 November 2008. 

Final report to be 
prepared for January 
meeting. 
 

Agenda Item 8

45



  

Maximising Council Income Service Support 
 

First meeting to be held 
on 1

st
 December 

following the completion 
to two internal audits on 
Income Generation and 
Discretionary Service 
Charges. Update to be 
provided at December 
meeting. 

Impact of New A14 in terms of 
air quality and noise pollution. 

Service Delivery Preliminary advice 
received from the 
District Council’s 
Environmental and 
Community Health 
Services Division. Matter 
to be discussed at 
Panel’s December 
meeting. 

 
 
  
 

2.4        The Service Support Panel have also identified the following as possible future   
studies:- 

 

Review of the incentives of the 
Council’s Travel Plan. 
 

Service Support 

The Council’s Future Borrowing 
Arrangements. 
 

Service Support 

 

 
 

3. RECOMMENDATION 

 
3.1 The Panel is requested to note the progress of the studies selected. 
 

 

Contact Officer:  Mrs Claire Bulman - (((( (01480) 388234. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Minutes and Reports from previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 

46



   

AREA OF REVIEW DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

Social Consequences of Alcohol Abuse 

Appointing Panel Overview and Scrutiny (Service Support) 

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

Councillors J T Bell, P M D Godfrey and Ms S L Kemp. 
 
Appointed 9th September 2008. 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

N/A 

Interests Declared Ms S L Kemp as a patron of licensed premises in St Ives 
and Huntingdon Town Centre 

Rapporteur Councillor Ms S L Kemp 

Officer Support  
 

Mr Roy Reeves, Head of Administration 
Mrs Claire Bulman, Democratic Services Officer 
Dr Sue Lammin, Head of Environmental and Community 
Health Services 
Ms C Walters, Team Leader, Community Safety 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

To investigate the impact of excessive alcohol consumption 
on levels of Anti Social Behaviour and Alcohol Related 
Crime within the District. 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

To respond to Members concerns about the social 
consequences of alcohol abuse 

Terms of Reference  

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

Links to Community Aim: Safe, Vibrant and Inclusive 
Communities: To prevent crime and anti-social behaviour 

 

ACTION BY WORKING GROUP 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

Information from Head of Environmental and Community 
Health Services / HCSP 
Interviews / Information from Partner organisations / relevant 
agencies 
Reviews undertaken by other authorities 
Collation of Statistical Evidence  
 

External/Specialist Support N/A 

Existing Documentation Huntingdonshire Community Safety Partnership: 
Community Safety Plan 2008 -2011 
Local Authority Profile of Alcohol Related Harm 
Hospital Admissions for alcohol related harm 
Bassetlaw District Council: Review of Alcohol Related Anti 
Social Behaviour 
Draft Cambridgeshire Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 
2008 -2011 
Presentation Slides from Presentation to all Members 
Alcohol Harm Reduction Newsletter: East of England 

47



   

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

Interview Chairman of HCSP and representatives of 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary 
Briefing Paper by Community Safety Team Leader 
Information on new Nightwatch scheme 
Allocation of LPSA Reward Monies. 
Statistics from NHS Cambridgeshire, Cambridgeshire 
Constabulary 
National Statistics 
Statistics / Information from Head of Environmental and 
Community Services  

Reference Sites 
 

www.huntsdc.gov.uk 
www.cambsdaat.org 
 

Investigations 
 

As outlined in evidence to be obtained 

Witnesses 
 

Dr S Lammin, Chairman of HCSP 
C Waters, Community Safety Team Leader 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary 
 
 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

None currently identified. 

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

14th October 2008 
3rd November 2008 
24th November 2008 
 

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 
 

Officer time – both to provide support and conduct research 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

None currently identified 

Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

Start: September 2008 
End: November 2008 

  

 

 

48



   

AREA OF REVIEW DETAILS/COMMENTS 

Title of Study 
(name of Working Group) 

Section 106 Working Group 

Appointing Panel Overview and Scrutiny (Service Support) Panel 

Members Assigned 
(including date Working Group 
appointed)  

Councillors P J Downes, D Harty, M F Newman and R G 
Tuplin 
 
Appointed by Panel on 12th February 2008. 
 

Possible Co-Options to the 
Group 

Councillor T D Sanderson 
 
Appointed by Panel on 8th April 2008. 

Interests Declared Councillors P J Downes and D Harty as members of 
Cambridgeshire County Council. 
 

Rapporteur Councillor D Harty 

Officer Support  
 

Mr Roy Reeves – Head of Administration, HDC 
Mrs Claire Bulman –Democratic Services, HDC 
Mr Steve Ingram – Head of Planning Services, HDC 
Mr A Moffatt – Development Control Manager 
Mr Robert Ward – Head of Operations 
Mr Steve Plant – Head of Housing 
Mr Colin Meadowcroft – Head of Legal 
Mr Ian Leatherbarrow – Head of Policy & Strategic Services 
 

Purpose of Study / Objective 
(specify exactly what the study 
should achieve) 

To investigate the Section 106 process adopted by the 
Council including the relationship with other infrastructure 
partners and make recommendations if improvements are 
thought to be necessary. 
 

Rationale 
(key issues and/or reason for 
conducting a study) 

Arising from Members concerns relating to S106 monitoring 
reports and the study by the Cycling Working Group which 
found it difficult to create an audit trail of money spent by 
different authorities. 
 

Terms of Reference  

Links to Council 
Policies/Strategies 

Links to Council Aim – to improve our systems and 
practices. 

 

ACTION BY WORKING GROUP 

Methodology / Approach 
(what types of enquiries will be 
used to gather evidence) 

Information from Heads of Service, Partner Organisations 
and other Members of the Council. 

External/Specialist Support N/A 

Existing Documentation ♦ Current / Previous quarterly monitoring reports 

♦ Report of the Cycling Working Group ~ Feb 2008 

♦ Details of Reviews undertaken by Cardiff, Stoke on 
Trent, Bradford 

 

49



   

Evidence to be Obtained 
(e.g. witnesses, documents, site 
visits, consultation, research, 
etc) 

Most of the evidence will be obtained by the Democratic 
Services Team together with information from 
Environmental & Community Services Directorate, Legal 
Department and Policy Division. 
 
Written Evidence provided as follows:- 
 

♦ Affordable Housing and Section 106 Agreements 
(Paper by Housing Division) 

♦ Existing s106 Obligation Process – Presentation by 
Development Control Manager 

♦ Response to Group’s questions by Head of Planning 
Services 

♦ Briefing Paper by Cambridgeshire County Council – 
Section 106 process 

♦ Notes of working group meetings held on 20th May, 3rd 
July, 21st July and 28th August 2008. 

♦ Information from Head of Financial Services 
 
 

Reference Sites 
 

None at present. 

Investigations 
 

Initially discussions arranged with Heads of Planning 
Services, Operations, Housing Services and Legal. 
Representatives from Fire & Rescue, Constabulary and PCT 
also attended. 
 
Demonstration of current Section 106 database. 
 
Further meeting with Head of Planning Services and 
Development Control Manager to review issues identified 
from previous discussions. 
 
Further held on 7th October 2008 to summarise current 
position. Final report currently being compiled. 
 

Witnesses 
 

As above. 

Site Visits (if necessary) 
(where and when) 

N/A at current time. 

Meetings of the Working 
Group 

20th May 2008. 
3rd July 2008 
21st July 2008 
28th August 2008 
7th October 2008 
 

Costs 
(resource requirements, 
additional expenditure, time) 
 

Officer time ~ both to provide support and to conduct 
research. 
 
No other external costs identified to date. 
 

Possible Barriers to the Study 
(potential weaknesses) 

None identified. 

Projected Timescale 
(Start and end times) 
 

Start ~ 12th February 2008 
Finish – December 2008 

 

50



 
 

  
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SERVICE SUPPORT) 

9TH DECEMBER 2008 

 

PROGRESS TO DATE 
(Report by the Head of Administration) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Panel have asked for the submission of a brief progress report to 

their monthly meetings to monitor action taken and the response to 
any recommendations which they have made. 

 
2. PROGRESS REPORT 
 
2.1 The monthly progress report therefore is attached which covers all 

outstanding items.  Actions previously reported upon as having been 
completed have been deleted from the report as the process rolls 
forward.  The report is in tabular form and comprises a brief synopsis 
of the Panel’s decisions and the subsequent action taken. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Panel are requested to note the contents of the attached report. 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Minutes and Reports of the Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Planning and Finance/ 
Service Support) 
 
 
Contact Officer: Mrs C Bulman –Democratic Services Officer 
 (((( (01480) 388234 
  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

51



  

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
 
10/06/08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
09/09/08 

HEAVY GOODS VEHICLE PARKING IN THE 
DISTRICT 
 
Endorsed the Working Group’s report and 
recommendations for submission of the Cabinet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Administration was asked to establish the 
current position with regard to the Panel’s 
recommendations following their referral to the Freight 
Quality Partnership. 

 
 
 
Recommendations endorsed by the 
Cabinet at their meeting on 26th June 
2008. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Email sent to Team Leader for 
Transportation. 
 
 

 
 
 
Agreed with Chairman / Vice 
Chairman that issue be taken 
forward by the Freight Quality 
Partnership. 
 
Matter included for discussion 
on agenda for LAA Reference 
Group. 
 
Freight Quality Partnership 
has now met – awaiting copy 
of Minutes before reporting 
back to Panel. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
08/07/08 
 
 
 
 

PETITION BY ST AUDREY LANE AREA RESIDENTS, 
ST IVES 
 
Representatives from Anglian Water in attendance at 
Panel’s July meeting. Requested that an update be 
provided in 6 months time and that residents be 
informed of the outcome of their investigations. 

 
 
 
Email requesting update sent – 
21/10/08 

 
 
 
CCTV survey of St Audrey 
Lane and Pig Lane Surface 
Water sewer completed. 
Funding now available to Jet 
Sewer – will be carried out 
shortly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
14/10/08 
 
 
 
 

PETITION  TO CONTROL COMMUTER PARKING IN 
THE LONGSANDS AREA OF STNEOTS 
 
Chairman to write to the Chairman of Huntingdonshire 
Traffic Management Area Joint Committee outlining the 
Panel’s concerns and requesting that the matter be 
progressed at the earliest opportunity. 
 
A representative from First Capital Connect to be invited 
to attend a future meeting to discuss their expansion 
plans for the car parks at Huntingdon and St Neots. 

 
 
 
Letter sent 21/10/08 
 
 
 
 
Letter sent 21/10/08 

 
 
 
Response received. Further 
information to be received in 
New Year once investigation 
report from Cambridgeshire 
County Council received. 
Representatives to attend a 
Panel meeting in the New 
Year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2008 

5
2



  

 
 

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

12/02/08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10/06/08 

CYCLING IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 
 
Endorsed the Working Group’s report and 
recommendations for submission of the Cabinet and 
requested that the study recommendations be placed 
on the progress report for future monitoring. 
 
[Recommendations are appended to this report]. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Asked the Transportation Team Leader to email all 
Members of the Council asking about any specific 
issues with regard to cycle routes in their wards. 
Requested sight of the draft report on the prioritisation 
of cycle schemes before any consideration by the AJC. 

 
 
Considered by the Cabinet at their 
meeting on 12th February 2008. Cabinet 
noted the recommendations and 
requested a further report by officers 
addressing the wider issue of Section 
106 funding and partnership working. 
Agreed that discussions should be held 
with Cambridgeshire County Council 
regarding their offer to update the 
Huntingdonshire Cycling Strategy and 
the issue of partnership working on 
cycling provision. 
 
Since the June Panel meeting, it has 
come to light that the list of potential 
cycle routes have already been scored 
and prioritised. A report will be 
considered by the AJC at their meeting 
on 7th July 2008, seeking ratification of 
the cycle routes as scored. Requests 
have been made for reviews to be 
undertaken annually, with the first 
review with Members to start in the 
autumn. 

 
 
Report updating the Panel on 
the current position the review 
of the Cycling Strategy and the 
provision for funding for 
Huntingdonshire in the LTP 
included on Agenda for the 
meeting for June 08 meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Priority List endorsed by the 
AJC. District Council members 
will be contacted before the 
next review in Summer 2009 
to ask about specific issues 
within their ward. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 08 

 

 
 
09/09/08 
 
 
 
 

MAXIMISING COUNCIL INCOME 
 
Appointed Councillors P J Downes, L W McGuire and 
R J West to a Working Group for the purpose of 
undertaking the above review. 

 
 
Internal Audit Service currently 
undertaking reviews of income 
generation and discretionary service 
charges. Working Group awaiting 
outcome of these reviews as a start to 
their study. First meeting to be held on 
1st December 2008. 

 
 
Update to be provided to 
Panel meeting. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5
3



  

 

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
14/05/08 
 
 

CORPORATE PLAN – GROWING SUCCESS 
 
Councillors M G Baker, J A Gray and R G Tuplin 
appointed to Corporate Plan Working Group.  

 
 
Quarterly reports submitted to Overview 
& Scrutiny. 
 

 
 
Next meeting 27th November 
2008. Item No. 8refers. 
 

 
 
Nov / Dec 

08 

 

 
 
15/01/08 
 
 
 
14/05/08 
 
 
 

LOCAL AREA AGREEMENTS 
 
Minutes of future meetings of the Cambridgeshire 
Together Local Accountability Committee should be 
circulated to all Panel Members. 
 
Councillor J A Gray appointed to Joint Accountability 
Committee. Substitute members to be appointed in 
consultation with Head of Administration. 
 

 
 
Meeting held on 22nd October 2008. 
Minutes circulated to all Members for 
information. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
14/10/08 

REVIEW OF LOCAL PROCUREMENT 
 
Agreed to hold further meeting with business 
representatives in the New Year. 

 
 
Meeting to be held on 12th March 2008 
at 4pm. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Mar 09 
 
 

 

 
 
 
08/07/08 
 
 
09/09/08 
 

LICENSING ACT – IMPACT ON NIGHTTIME 
ECONOMY 
 
Head of Administration to prepare a scoping report for 
a future meeting. 
 
Agreed to establish a working group comprising 
Councillors J T Bell, P M D Godfrey and Ms S L Kemp 
to undertake a review of the problems of alcohol abuse 
and its social consequences. 
 
Working Group asked to establish why the Local 
Strategic Partnership had not signed up to the recent 
countywide Alcohol Strategy. 

 
 
 
Report submitted to September 2008 
meeting. 
 
First meeting held on 14th October 
2008. Further meetings held on 3rd and 
24th November 2008. Working Group 
currently compiling final report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5
4



  

 

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 
 

 
 
14/04/05 
 
12/02/08 
 
 
 
 
 

MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
 
Quarterly reports to be submitted to the Panel. 
 
Agreed to establish a working Group comprising 
Councillors P J Downes, D Harty, M F Newman and R 
G Tuplin to investigate the current Section 106 
Agreement Mechanism for the negotiation of 
agreements and the distribution of money received. 
 

 
 
Next report due December 2008.  
 
Final report currently being compiled. 
Further meeting to be held with Working 
Group Chairman on 4th December 2008. 

 
 
Item No.7 refers 
 
 

 
 

Dec 08 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
08/07/08 
 
 
 
11/11/08 

GREAT FEN PROJECT 
 
Director of Environmental & Community Services to 
make presentation to future meeting. All Scrutiny 
Members to be invited. 
 
Report on the content of the collaboration agreement 
to be submitted to a future Panel meeting before its 
consideration by Cabinet. 

 
 
Comments submitted to Cabinet 
meeting on 20th November 2008. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Nov 08 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5
5



  

 
 

Panel  
Date 

Decision Action Response Date 
 

 

 
 
08/04/08 
 
 
 
09/10/07 
 
 
 
13/11/07 
 
 
08/07/08 
 
 
 
08/07/08 
 
 
 
14/10/08 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

Development Control Policies Preferred Options 
Requested that report should be considered at a future 
meeting of the Panel. 
 

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan 
Requested that the report should be considered at a 
future meeting of the Panel. 
 

 Parish Plans and Local Plan Policy 
Circulate report when this becomes available. 
 
 Proposals for Huntingdon Riverside Park 
 Requested that report should be considered at a future   
 meeting of the Panel. 
 
Developer Contributions SPD 
Requested that report should be considered at a future    
 meeting of the Panel. 
 
Response to Highways Agency pre-consultation on 
side road orders: A14 improvements. Requested that 
report should be considered at a future    
 meeting of the Panel 
 
 

 
 
 
Item No.4  refers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Dec 08 
 
 
 

Feb 09 
 
 

    Jan 09 
 
 
 

Feb 09 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mar 09 
   
 

 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

5
6



  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM CYCLING IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 
 
  (a) that the offer by the County Council to update the Council’s existing cycling strategy and to prepare an action plan  for its 

implementation be welcomed and officers requested to conclude this work within the next six months; 
 
  (b) that, following completion of the strategy and action plan, specific contributions be sought in Section 106 Agreements for 

cycleway provision in Huntingdonshire in appropriate cases;  
 
  (c) that contributions negotiated under (b) above be retained by the District Council for expenditure on implementation of the cycling 

strategy action plan; 
 
  (d) that the District Council seek the allocation of specific funding through the Local Transport Plan for cycleway provision in 

Huntingdonshire;  
 
  (e) that the approval of individual cycleway schemes continue to be the responsibility of the Huntingdonshire Traffic Management 

Area Joint Committee with District Council expenditure continuing to be allocated on a scheme by scheme basis.   

5
7



58

This page is intentionally left blank



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 89

Monthly summary of the decisions taken at meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny and other Panels for the period 1st to 28th 
November 2008. 

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

APPOINTMENT OF CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR, CENTRAL SERVICES 

Having interviewed the short-listed 
candidates for the post, the 
Appointments Panel has appointed 
Mr I Leatherbarrow as Director of 
Central Services with effect from 
10th November 2008. 

GYPSY AND TRAVELLER SITES, 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
DOCUMENT:  INITIAL ISSUES 
CONSULTATION DOCUMENT:  
PRINCIPLES AND PROCESSES  

A proposed consultation document 
to help guide the preparation of the 
Development Plan Document for 
Gypsy and Traveller sites has been 
endorsed by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) 
prior to its consideration by Cabinet. 

The Panel has recognised the 
potentially contentious nature of the 
issues, especially once the process 
moves on to site identification, and 
therefore appreciates the need for a 
robust basis for the site selection 
exercise and the importance of 
generating interest and comment at 
this stage of the process.  The 
Panel has raised a number of 
questions concerning the availability 
of consultation responses, the 
method of engaging with the gypsy 

and traveller community, the options 
available for the acquisition and 
allocation of appropriate land and 
the role which District Council 
Members play in the process.  
Concerns also have been 
expressed about the implications for 
Huntingdonshire residents of 
potential site selections by 
neighbouring authorities near to the 
District’s boundary.

Having regard to the possibility of 
sites being chosen in the more rural 
areas in the District, the Panel has 
suggested that the 6 weeks 
consultation period may be too short 
for some of the smaller parish 
councils to respond.  As the scope 
to extend the deadline for comment 
is constrained by the need for early 
approval of the DPD, the Panel has 
asked officers to alert town and 
parish councils and Members of the 
District Council of the forthcoming 
publication of the document and its 
significance.  Officers have also 
been asked to consider the 
possibility of convening a limited 
number of workshops for interested 
town and parish councils.   

Having been advised of the Panel’s 
views, the Cabinet has approved the 
document for public consultation 
and has supported a decision to 
hold an explanatory workshop on 
the consultation process to which 

Agenda Item 10

59



Edition 89 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 2 

Members of the District, Town and 
Parish Councils will be invited. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND 
NEIGHBOURHOOD PANELS 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
have been updated with the latest 
developments in respect of local 
and national initiatives arising from 
the Government’s White Paper – 
Communities in Control:  Real 
Power, Real People. 

The Service Delivery Panel has 
discussed a series of models 
through which community 
engagement might be achieved. 
Following extensive discussion on 
the Neighbourhood Panel’s powers, 
size, training and membership, the 
Panel has expressed some concern 
over the financial and other 
resource implications that the 
proposal might have for the District. 
Members concurred with the view 
that any new Neighbourhood Panels 
should not have Executive decision-
making powers and concluded that 
new arrangements should be kept a 
simple as possible. 

In view of the significant number of 
policy initiatives currently and the 
need to ensure a co-ordinated 
approach in considering the 
implications for both the District 
Council and the communities in 
Huntingdonshire, the Panels have 
endorsed a suggestion that the 
consideration and development of 
community engagement initiatives 
should be dealt with by the 
Democratic Structure Working 
Party.

HOME WORKING:  PILOT 
SCHEME

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Support) has been 
acquainted with the outcome of a 
pilot scheme which has enabled five 
District Council employees to work 
full-time at home over the preceding 
year.

Having noted the positive benefits 
demonstrated by the pilot, the 
potential savings in office 
accommodation costs and the 
intention to roll out full-time working 
to other employees where 
appropriate, the Panel has 
welcomed the home working 
initiative and agreed that efforts to 
expand the pilot should be 
encouraged.

GREAT FEN PROJECT 
GOVERNANCE

Following extensive discussions 
with the Executive Councillor for 
Planning Strategy and 
Transportation, the Director of 
Environmental and Community 
Services and the Project Manager of 
the Great Fen Project, the Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel (Service 
Support) has expressed its support 
for a recommendation to Cabinet to 
enter into a Collaboration 
Agreement in respect of the Great 
Fen Project for a five-year fixed term 
on a renewable basis.  The Panel 
concluded that the District Council 
could best influence and guide the 
project in the interests of the local 
area and its residents through its 
continuing involvement in the 
Project Steering Group. 

60



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 89

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 3 

Nevertheless, the Panel has 
expressed some reservations about 
the way in which the project is 
developing and has made its views 
known to the Cabinet.  These can 
be summarised as relating to – 

 the implications for some of 
the local people most 
directly affected; 

 the loss of arable land in the 
current climate of global 
food shortages; 

 improved communications 
with local communities in 
close proximity to the 
project;

 the economic and 
employment forecasts given 
the investment made by 
EEDA to-date; 

 the future financial viability 
of the visitors’ centre and 
the long-term management 
of the land and the source of 
any subsidy required; 

 improved accessibility to 
Woodwalton Fen and Holme 
Fen especially car parking; 

 the role of the District 
Council in the Great Fen 
Partnership as the 
democratic representative of 
local people and the local 
economy; and 

 communication with 
Members on the project as a 
whole, given its significance 
and importance. 

The Panel recognised that some of 
the above are likely to be addressed 
in the Master Plan, shortly to be 
published by the Project and also 
has asked that a report on the 
content of the collaboration 
agreement be submitted to a future 

Panel meeting before its 
consideration by Cabinet. 

Having been advised of the Panel’s 
views, the Cabinet has approved 
arrangements for the Council to 
enter into a Collaboration 
Agreement for a renewable five-year 
fixed term.  The Cabinet also 
requested that the final draft 
agreement be considered by the 
Panel prior to its consideration by 
Cabinet.

REVIEW OF POLICY TO LIMIT 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCES 

The Licensing and Protection Panel 
has agreed that consultation should 
be undertaken to consider the 
delimitation of licensed hackney 
carriage numbers in 
Huntingdonshire.

The Council is now in a minority of 
authorities that restrict the issue of 
hackney carriage licences on the 
basis that there is no significant 
unmet demand in the area.  In 
response to an Office of Fair 
Trading recommendation that local 
authorities should not retain the 
powers to restrict numbers, the 
Government has agreed that it is 
wrong in principle to restrict entry to 
the market for those who meet the 
relevant criteria but they have left 
this at the discretion of local 
authorities.  As another survey to 
gauge unmet demand is now due at 
an estimated cost of £20,000, if the 
present restriction of 44 licences is 
to be maintained, the Licensing and 
Protection Panel feels it is an 
appropriate time to consider 
delimitation and at the same time 
new licences to be issued for 
wheelchair accessible vehicles only.  

61



Edition 89 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 4 

The Licensing and Protection Panel 
will be considering the matter further 
in light of the replies to the 
consultation exercise. 

LICENSING OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGES, PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLES AND PRIVATE HIRE 
OPERATORS 

The Licensing and Protection Panel 
has approved, subject to any minor 
amendments, revised and updated 
licence conditions relating to 
hackney carriages, private hire 
vehicles and private hire operators.  
Revisions to the conditions 
pertaining to licensed drivers are in 
the process of being prepared but 
will require amendment to the 
current hackney carriage byelaws.   

HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 

The Licensing and Protection Panel 
has approved a revised table of 
hackney carriage fares to be 
advertised to come into effect from 
12th January 2009.  The fares were 
last reviewed in October 2007 and a 
new tariff is being proposed to 
address concerns raised by the taxi 
trade over the cost of short journeys 
and recent increases in fuel costs.

ALCOHOL ENTERTAINMENT 
AND LATE NIGHT 
REFRESHMENT LICENSING 

The Licensing Committee has 
received an overview of the scale of 
the impact of the Licensing Act 
within the District, following the 
compilation of statistical information 
for the Department of Culture, 
Media and Sport on the number of 
licences and certificates in force in 
the District and the number of 

applications received in 2007/2008.  
Over 50% of the licences issued by 
the Council for alcohol consumption 
on the premises permitted live 
music, contrary to suggestions 
nationally that live music venues 
had decreased in numbers as a 
result of the Act.  The number of 
personal licences administered by 
the Council rose by 18% in 2007/08 
but as such licences have 
nationwide validity, this does not 
present an accurate reflection of 
personal licence holders currently 
authorising sales of alcohol in the 
District.  The Licensing Committee 
also has been updated on the 
national statistics recently published 
by the DCMS which showed that the 
number of premises licences have 
increased by 6% in the year to 31st 
March 2008 and the number of 
personal licences by 19%. 

ALCOHOL DISORDER ZONES 

The Licensing Committee has 
received a report on the powers 
available to the Council to designate 
Alcohol Disorder Zones.  The use of 
such measures is intended to be a 
last resort when problems relating to 
alcohol consumption were incapable 
of being attributed to an individual 
licensed premises and can not be 
dealt with by any other means.  The 
Panel has noted that ADZs can be 
used only to address alcohol related 
nuisance for disorder issues and 
cannot be applied to problems 
caused by late night food outlets or 
litter.

BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM 
PLAN 2009/2014 DRAFT 
PROPOSALS
The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Corporate and Strategic 

62



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 89

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 5 

Framework) has considered and 
endorsed the draft budget and 
Medium Term Plan (MTP) for the 
Council as the basis for the 
production of the 2009/2010 budget, 
the revised MTP for 2013/2014 and 
the financial strategy to 2023/2024.  
In doing so, the Panel has 
welcomed the greater involvement 
of Executive Councillors in the 
budget setting process and 
recognise the difficulties created by 
the current economic climate.

Although the Panel had no specific 
issues which it wished to bring to 
the attention of the Cabinet with 
regard to the proposals, the Panel 
raised a number of questions 
relating to the need for Council 
borrowing to fund capital projects for 
2009/2010, the likely impact of a 
reduction in income achieved from 
National Non-Domestic Rates, the 
proportion of District Council 
expenditure between the market 
towns and villages and extent of 
Council expenditure on housing 
services.

HOUSING STRATEGY FOR THE 
CAMBRIDGE SUB-REGION 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has been 
acquainted with details of the 
Housing Strategy for the Cambridge 
Sub-Region. The document sets out 
how the District Council would work 
in partnership on housing issues 
that extend across local authority 
boundaries, which comprise seven 
local authority areas within the 
region.  The Strategy is important 
because it enables funding for 
housing purposes to be made at a 
regional level.   

The Panel has discussed the impact 
of the current economic downturn in 
terms of the achievement of the 
Action Plan. Although noting that the 
downturn has produced positive 
effects in terms of delivering social 
housing, Members have registered 
their concern at the level of the 
demand for advice for those 
residents experiencing difficulties in 
making mortgage repayments.

At a subsequent meeting of the 
Cabinet, Executive Members 
approved the content of the Strategy 
whilst expressing caution over the 
achievement of its objectives given 
the current climate in the housing 
market.

OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY 
ASSESSMENTS 

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) has received an 
update on the latest position with 
regards to the length of time taken 
by Occupational Therapists to 
conduct assessments of need for 
home adaptations across the 
District. It was noted that significant 
reductions in waiting time have been 
achieved over the previous six 
months period. The financial 
implications for the Council of 
expediting the process has also 
been discussed. 

GRANT AID 

The final report of the Grant Aid 
Working Group has been submitted 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery).

The Working Group has been 
tasked with investigating all grant 
aid schemes offered by the Council, 

63



Edition 89 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 6 

including the criteria of each 
scheme, how they relate to the 
Council’s corporate priorities, the 
methods adopted to publicise 
availability of grant funding, the 
application process, Officer / 
Member involvement in the approval 
process and the level of external 
funding brought into the District.   It 
is hoped that the Working Group’s 
recommendations will streamline 
and promote the current grant aid 
process.

The Panel has commended the 
Working Group for their efforts and 
has endorsed their findings for 
submission to the Cabinet after a 
review of the Council’s service level 
agreements with Voluntary Sector 
Organisations has been undertaken. 

LEISURE CENTRES – RE-
STRUCTURING

The Employment Panel has been 
informed of the results of the staff 
consultation and evaluation of posts 
involved in the proposed changes to 
the management structure within the 
Leisure Centres. 

Having noted the views of 
Employees Side representatives 
who had expressed some concerns 
about the financial implications of 
the proposals for a number of the 
employees affected, the Panel 
endorsed the proposed re-structure 
for implementation by 1st April 
2009.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE 
INTRODUCTION OF A REVIEW 
SCHEDULE FOR ADOPTED 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Over a number of years, Human 
Resources (HR) policies and 
procedures have been introduced 
as a result of business need or in 
response to legislative 
requirements.

To facilitate an increasingly 
proactive approach to the HR 
service, the Employment Panel has 
agreed a three year rolling 
programme for the review of all 
policies and procedures to ensure 
that they reflect current best 
practice, comply with legislative 
requirements and reflect the needs 
of the Council. In endorsing the 
proposed review schedule, the 
Panel has noted that there are 
currently just over 50 policies and 
procedures, although it is 
anticipated that some will be 
consolidated as the review 
programme progresses.

STAFF ATTENDANCE 

The Employment Panel has 
endorsed a revised Attendance 
Policy for the Council which has 
been designed to reflect national 
provisions and to provide a measure 
of clarity across the District Council 
for managers and employees. 

The Panel has been pleased to note 
that employee absence rates for the 
District Council compare favourably 
to both the public sector and 
national averages reported by the 
Chartered Institute of Personnel 
Development.

COMMUNITIES IN CONTROL:  
REAL PEOPLE, REAL POWER:  
CODES OF CONDUCT FOR 
LOCAL AUTHORITY MEMBERS 

64



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 89

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 7 

AND EMPLOYEES – A 
CONSULTATION 

Following the receipt of a recent 
consultation paper by the 
Department of Communities and 
Local Government seeking views on 
the proposed introduction of a 
model code of conduct for local 
government employees, the Panel 
has authorised the Director of 
Central Services in consultation with 
the Chairman and a representative 
of the Employees Side to agree the 
content of the Council’s response. 

REQUESTS TO FILL VACANT 
POSTS

The Employment Panel has 
considered the circumstances 
applicable to a number of vacancies 
across the Council’s Directorates 
and has authorised the HR Manager 
to recruit the following posts, 
together with any subsequent posts 
vacated as a result of internal 
promotion:-

 Auditor; and 

 Environmental Health 
Officer.

In respect of the post of Head of 
Policy and Strategic Services, the 
Panel has agreed to defer its 
consideration to a future meeting. 

SICKNESS PAY

Having been apprised of the 
circumstances applicable to a 
member of staff on long-term sick 
leave, the Employment Panel has 
endorsed a decision taken by the 
appropriate Head of Service to grant 
an extension of full pay to the 
employee pending determination of 

their application for ill-health 
retirement.

Subject to such decisions being 
reported to its next ensuing meeting, 
the Panel also has authorised the 
Director of Central Services after 
consultation with the Chairman of 
the Panel, to determine variations to 
the national terms and conditions for 
sickness pay where they cannot be 
determined by the Panel within the 
relevant timescale.

FINANCIAL MONITORING 

The Head of Financial Services has 
drawn to the Cabinet’s attention 
variations to the approved Capital 
Programme and spending variations 
in the revenue budget for the current 
year.  At the same time, the Cabinet 
has approved the commencement 
of the Medium Term Plan Schemes 
for the St. Ivo Leisure Centre – 
Football Improvements, Huntingdon 
West Development, St. Neots Green 
Corridor and Sustainable Homes 
Retro-Fit Scheme.  The latter is 
subject to the Executive Councillor 
for Finance and Environment being 
consulted on the scheme’s timing in 
relation to the situation within the 
housing market. 

CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND 
PETERBOROUGH JOINT 
MUNICIPAL WASTE STRATEGY 

The Cabinet has approved the 
content of the revised 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Joint Municipal Waste Strategy.  
The Strategy has retained the 
original principles of the first 
Strategy published in 2003 and has 
addressed the following key themes, 
associated objectives and actions:- 

65



Edition 89 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 8 

 underlining strategic 
principles for the waste 
strategy;

 joint working; 

 climate change; 

 protection of the 
environment;

 waste prevention and re-
use;

 recycling and composting; 

 management of residual 
waste;

 wider waste roles; and 

 stakeholder engagement. 

Whilst discussing recycling levels, 
the Cabinet has congratulated 
residents for their continuing efforts 
in recycling which has resulted in 
the strategy target for 2010/2011 of 
55-60% already being achieved. 

ENHANCED CLEANSING 
SERVICES

The Cabinet has considered further 
reports by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) 
regarding the use of alcohol 
disorder zones and the introduction 
of additional cleansing services in 
the town centres on Sunday 
mornings to deal with the effects of 
the Saturday night time economy.

In discussing their 
recommendations, the Cabinet still 
consider that the Panel has failed to 
explain sufficiently the scope for any 
re-distribution of cleansing services 
in the Operations Division, the 
precise extent of the streets to be 
cleaned and whether financial 
contributions might be forthcoming 
from the Town Councils towards an 
enhanced service.  Nevertheless in 

expressing its support for an 
improvement to the appearance of 
town centres, the Cabinet has 
agreed to accept in principle, the 
introduction of cleansing services on 
Sundays in the market towns across 
the District.  At the same time, the 
Cabinet has requested that financial 
contributions towards the cost of 
implementing additional cleansing 
be sought from the relevant town 
councils and that the Head of 
Operations looking into and report 
back to the Cabinet on the feasibility 
of re-scheduling cleansing rotas 
within existing resources.

In considering the circumstances in 
which Alcohol Disorder Zones 
(ADZs) could be introduced in the 
District, and in noting that ADZs are 
intended as a short-term, last resort 
measure to address a high level of 
alcohol-related nuisance and 
disorder, circumstances which are 
not applicable in the District, the 
Cabinet has recognised that their 
use is inappropriate to deal with the 
problem of litter.

SUPPORTING LOCAL 
RETAILERS 

The introduction of a car parking 
voucher scheme aimed at 
supporting local retailers by 
increasing the number of people 
who choose to shop in Huntingdon, 
St. Neots and St. Ives during the 
present economic climate has been 
endorsed by the Cabinet.  The 
voucher, printed in the Winter 
edition of Districtwide, can be used 
to park free of charge for up to 4 
hours in any long stay car park on 
Saturdays in December or January.

66



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 89

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 9 

DECENT HOMES FOR 
VULNERABLE PEOPLE IN THE 
PRIVATE SECTOR 

The Council has been successful in 
obtaining a grant of £163,400 from 
EERA’s Housing and Sustainable 
Communities Panel to help improve 
“non-decent homes” in the private 
sector.  In 2007 a similar grant was 
received and its use was reserved 
for thermal efficiency improvements.  
Despite targeted publicity the take-
up of this grant was lower than 
anticipated.  Having been made 
aware that the demand for grants 
was expected to increase due to 
rises in fuel costs and the expansion 
of the scope of the grant criteria, the 
Cabinet has agreed to use the 
2008/09 award in the current year 
for decent homes for vulnerable 
people – to rectify category 1 
hazards and thermal efficiency 
improvements and that the 2006/07 
and 2007/08 award be rephased for 
the same purpose with £75,000 of it 
being used in the current year to 
assist in funding the Sustainable 
Homes Retro-Fit Scheme.  As part 
of this process, the Cabinet has 
requested that a review of the 
programme be undertaken once the 
basis and likelihood of the allocation 
of grant in future years is known. 

FREE SWIMMING FOR THE 
OVER-60’S AND UNDER 17’S

A proposal to introduce free 
swimming for the Over-60’s has 
been given the go ahead by 
Cabinet.  Members were advised 
that the proposal was one of two 
Government incentives, the other 
being free swimming for Under 17’s.  
Having considered the benefits and 
risks associated with each incentive, 

along with the funding allocation 
being offered by the Department for 
Culture, Media and Sport, the 
Cabinet has recognised that free 
swimming for the Over 60’s could be 
both cost-effective and manageable 
given the numbers likely to take-up 
the offer. However, it was felt that 
free swimming for Under 17’s could 
have a significant impact upon 
admissions and the reimbursement 
offered was not commensurate with 
the costs involved in providing the 
extra staff required for the 
anticipated demand.  The decision 
has received the support of the 
District’s five Leisure Centres 
Management Committees. 

URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK: 
LAND AROUND BUTTSGROVE 
WAY, THE WHADDONS AND 
SUFFOLK HOUSE, HUNTINGDON

The Development Control Panel has 
commended the content of the 
Urban Design Framework prepared 
to guide development of an area 
comprising 3.5 acres around 
Buttsgrove Way, the Whaddons and 
Suffolk House, Huntingdon. The 
areas are currently made up of 
1960s/70s bungalows and a seven 
storey block of flats. The Cabinet 
has been recommended to adopt 
the brief as Informal Planning & 
Design Guidance,. 

APPLICATION FOR 
DISPENSATION – HEMINGFORD 
ABBOTS PARISH COUNCIL  

At a special meeting, the Standards 
Committee has granted a 
dispensation to 7 members of 
Hemingford Abbots Parish Council 
for the period ending 30th April 2012 
to enable them to speak and vote on 

67



Edition 89 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 10 

business relating to the Hemingford 
Abbots Playing Fields Charity. 

68



Edition 89 DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 11 

Even page 

69



DDD eee ccc iii sss iii ooo nnn DDD iii ggg eee sss ttt Edition 88

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section  (01480) 388007

page 12 

Odd page 

70


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 - FORWARD PLAN
	4 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIONS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT DPD
	5 URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK - LAND AROUND BUTTSGROVE WAY, THE WHADDONS AND SUFFOLK HOUSE, HUNTINGDON
	6 MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS)
	S106Appendix A
	Appendix B - Future Potential Benefits - Developments Commenced
	Appendix C - Future Potential Benefits - developments not commenced
	S106APPENDIX D

	7 PERFORMANCE MONITORING
	8 WORKPLAN STUDIES
	Work Plan Studies (Alcohol)
	Work Plan Studies (s106)

	9 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE SUPPORT)
	10 SCRUTINY

